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Chairlady’s Statement
FIEmE

To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CT Vision (International)
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present you with
the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

2019 is a year full of challenges and changes. The slowdown in
global economy due to the Sino-U.S. trade disputes and the social
unrest in Hong Kong in the second half of 2019 have severely
affected the investment climate of the construction industry,
resulting in a sharp decline in the number of available projects
for tender as well as a significant reduction in profit margin of
construction projects, and thereby making the project tendering
more challenging. In light of the aforesaid factors, during the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not been awarded any
new contracts for general building works projects and only obtained
seven new contracts for the foundation works and ancillary services.
In addition, certain construction projects were at their ending phase.
The revenue generated from construction services has accordingly
plunged as compared with that of the corresponding period last
year.

In response to the market challenges, the Group will continue to
leverage the experience and technology of CT Vision Investment
Limited (“CT Vision Investment”), our controlling shareholder, in
introducing renewable energy to the construction industry so as to
adopt energy-saving measures to the properties to be built, with a
view to provide customers with more comprehensive construction
services and enhancing their competitiveness in tendering for
construction contracts.
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Chairlady’s Statement
FIEWmE

RENEWABLE ENERGY BUSINESS

In order to broaden the revenue base and diversify the Group's
source of income geographically, TIEN New Energy Development
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, actively expands related
businesses to accumulate technology and experience in renewable
energy construction projects. In addition to the construction of
solar power systems, the Company entered into contracts for the
construction of wind power projects for the first time during the
year. In view of the announcement of policies and measures from
official authorities of the People's Republic of China (the “PRC") in
2019 to support the development of the renewable energy industry,
the outlook of renewable energy industry remains optimistic in
the near future. It is expected that renewable energy business will
become the driving force for the Group's revenue in the future.

OUTLOOK

The global outbreak of novel coronavirus disease in early 2020
severely influenced the sentiment and operation of the society. In
order to cope with the spread of the epidemic, intra-city or inter-
regional traffic of a number of large and medium-sized cities in the
PRC have been restricted. The administration has also tightened the
quarantine measures and conditions for the enterprises to resume
operation and postponed the resumption of work after the Chinese
New Year holiday. The abovementioned measures caused delay in
certain domestic renewable energy construction projects and is
expected to affect the related results of the Company in the first
half of 2020. In terms of construction services, it is expected that
the new contracts for the foundation works and ancillary services,
which have been signed in 2019, will generate revenue in 2020, and
the Saipan project is expected to resume work by the end of 2020,
which will bring a positive impact on the income of construction
services in the coming year.
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Chairlady’s Statement
FIEmE

Looking forward, the management will continue to prudently
respond to market changes and challenges and seize the
opportunities brought by the macroeconomic policy of the PRC.
Besides, by leveraging on the substantial resources of CT Vision
Investment, our controlling shareholder, we will explore possibilities
to diversify our business for spreading risks. Meanwhile, it also
complements the existing construction services business and
creates synergies, so as to drive business growth and create value for
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

' would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
appreciation to our shareholders, customers, subcontractors and
suppliers for their continuous support. In the meantime, | would
also like to thank our Board of Directors, the management team and
the staff of the Group for their hard work and dedication. Even if
the business environment in the coming year is full of challenges,
the Group will continue adhering to its commitment. Let’s put our
hearts together and work hand in hand to create win-win.

DuYi
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 13 July 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A am B AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are (i) building construction
business which mainly includes foundation works and ancillary
services and general building works, (ii) sales of piles, and (iii)
renewable energy business.

In October 2014, the Group entered into a construction contract
(the “Contract”) as the main contractor, providing foundation works
and ancillary services and general building works (“Project”), for a
construction project. The foundation works lasted from May 2015 to
October 2015. The general building works commenced in May 2016
and was preliminary expected to complete in or around February
2018. However, due to (i) the inclement weather; (ii) change of
policy on worker visa application, such that a substantial amount
of workers could not obtain the necessary work permit carry out
the work at the site; and (iii) change in design as instructed by the
customer (“Customer A"), and permit for this work not having been
obtained, the progress of the Project was hindered. On 19 March
2018, Customer A has issued a letter to us indicating its agreement
to our application for extension of time and the completion date of
the Project was extended to February 2019. During the year ended
31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, the
aforementioned factors are still affecting the progress of the Project.

The management has been in active discussion with Customer A
to recover the overdue trade receivables due to the Group. On 10
March 2020, the Group and Customer A entered into an amendment
agreement (the “Amendment”) for the settlement of the overdue
trade receivables. According to the Amendment, the overdue trade
receivables will be settled in stages by 31 March 2021. Subsequent
settlement of HK$103,952,000 was received as at the date of this
annual report. Furthermore, Customer A agreed that it had no claim
of liquidated or ascertained damages of any type under the Contract
against the Group up to the date of the Amendment.

The Project is now expected to be completed in 18 months upon
the recommencement of construction work, which depends on the
resumption of Visa approval process by the local authorities.

Customer A agrees to grant an extension of time of 18 months upon

the recommencement of construction work. The Board will continue
to monitor the progress of the Project closely.
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I\/\anagement Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R wm B AT

Building construction business

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 10 contracts
(2018: 8 contracts) on hand (including contracts in progress and
contracts yet to be commenced). The amount of contact sum yet to
be recognised as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$506.3 million (2018: HK$386.0 million).

Foundation Works and Ancillary Services

Foundation works mainly include mini-piling, percussive piling, rock
socketed in steel H-pile and bored pile, together with construction
of pile caps. Ancillary services mainly include site formation and
demolition works, for example, clearance of the site, excavation,
demolition of a building or any substantial part of a building.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were 18 (2018:
16) foundation works and ancillary services projects contributing
revenue of approximately HK$143.5 million (2018: HK$102.7 million)
to this business stream.

General Buildings Works

General building works mainly include structural alteration and
additional works, development of superstructures such as entire
dwelling, office buildings, stores, public utility buildings, farm
buildings, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were 8 (2018:
11) general building works projects contributing revenue of
approximately HK$63.7 million (2018: HK$441.4 million) to this
business stream.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A am B AT

Sales of Piles

The piles are manufactured and supplied by BEMEREEER
A R] ("GZYC"), the related party of the Company. Win Win Way
Materials Supply Limited, the indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, has been granted the exclusive distribution right
by GZYC for its pile products in Hong Kong from August 2010 to
July 2020. The piles sourced from GZYC are “YANGCHENG" precast
prestressed concrete piles.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, sales of piles contributed
approximately HK$2.9 million (2018: HK$65.8 million) revenue to the
Group. The decrement is mainly due to decrease in the demand of
concrete piles used for certain geological areas with different soil

type.
Renewable energy business

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal reporting
structure which resulting in changes to the composition of its
reporting segments. The segment of construction of solar power
plants and sales of electricity has grouped into renewable energy
business, which covers construction of renewable energy systems,
(e.g. solar power systems and wind power systems) and rental
income of contract on sales of electricity in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

During the year ended 31 December 2019, renewable energy
business contributed approximately HK$36.7 million revenue
(2018: HK$0.8 million) of the Group. As at the date of this annual
report, the Group had a total of 3 contracts (2018: 5 contracts)
on hand (including contracts in progress and contracts yet to be
commenced) and the relevant awarded contract sum of these
contracts on hand amounted to approximately RMB192.2 million
(2018: RMB201.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A wm R AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, we completed 11
projects involving foundation works and ancillary services, and 7
projects involving general building works.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$246.9 million (2018: HK$610.8
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the combined
effect of, among others, (i) the decrease in revenue recognised
from general building work projects because most of the general
building work projects of the Group on hands were at their ending
phase with revenue already recognised in previous years; (ii) no new
contract for general building work projects was awarded during
the year ended 31 December 2019; (iii) the commencement of
social unrest and the deteriorating economic conditions in Hong
Kong in the second half of 2019 which have severely affected the
construction industry and caused the decrease in the number of
projects which are available for tender; (iv) only seven new contracts
for the foundation works and ancillary services were awarded
during the year ended 31 December 2019; and (v) the decrease in
the demand of concrete piles used for certain geological areas with
different soil type which have resulted in decrease in the revenue
recognised therefrom.

Due to the aforementioned factors and reasons, the Group’s gross
profit decreased from approximately HK$79.6 million during the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$24.0 million
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group's gross profit
margin slightly decreased from approximately 13.0% during the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 9.7% during the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Directors consider that the overall
gross profit margin has been maintained at a healthy position
throughout the year.

General and administrative expenses (the “G&A Expenses”)
primarily comprise staff costs, business development expenses,
transportation expenses, depreciation, bank charges, office
expenses and professional charges. The G&A Expenses for the year
decreased by HKS$8.8 million to approximately HK$40.6 million,
compared with approximately HK$49.4 million in last year, which
was mainly due to legal and professional fee incurred in last year.

As a result, the Group recorded a loss for the year of approximately

HK$108.1 million as compared with the profit of approximately
HK$17.4 million in 2018.

1 0 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Bt % Bl &

REZE2019F 128318 IEFE - BMZK T 111E
BRWETRERERSNER » UETESR—
MEETEMIEBER -

HE2019F12A3BILEFE  AEENKRSENAE
2469B BB T (20184  6108AEBTT) - BH
THEERHARU TEENGATEZ(EFTEE)
(B—MREBETIRBEBIANKISRD  REZ
REBFHEERBD —MEETREEHENR
THRE  EREKZCRBEFERR  (WNE2
2019F 12 A3 BIEFEWEER —REETIZIE
BEFAL ¢ (iD2019F THEFHRRME N ER
EENRBERREL  BRMEVERETETEY
AHEEMNIEB HERD  (VREZE2019F12A
B FEEEREMOELRMNEERBSHH
A8 RVRTRELEEANE TIhERFEAN
SRR BERIOND SRR RERN KGR
FE -

AR EAERIER  AEBNTEHHEZE2018
FNANBIEFELHVEE BT ITKEZEHZE
2019 12 A31HIEFEL24088 BT - A%E
HEMEHEZ20185F12 A31 8 IEFE4913.0%H
BEEHZE2019F 12831 HIEFEL9.7% > EER
B BREMNER2FHEFNBREKTE -

—BERTEAL(—RETHEAZ D TEBEE
TRA - ¥%ERER - XBHRAX - TE - BT
BH MAEHAIREEBR - AFE—RREIT
BAYREAFHN048EATTRIssEEBTE
WAcEBBIL  TERRNEFEENEERE
EERATE -

Fit » REBEARFEHEEENI08IEEET
M2018F M1 74 B BB T -

Annual Report 2019 Fif



I\/\anagement Discussion and Analysis

BB REDH

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

RBEE  MBERRERERE

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
120195 20184F
12A31H 12H31H

Current ratio’ mENLE & 1.6 26

Gearing ratio (%)> TERR b & (%)> 51.5 31.9

Net debt to equity ratio (%) SFETSRERR L R (%) 33.8 16.6

Interest coverage ratio* H BB =4 (21.8) 6.7

Notes: PaE -

1. Current ratio based on the total current assets divided by the total 1 MELL R RBRBEERERANS B EEFER
current liabilities. Ho

2. Gearing ratio based on the total debt (which includes bank loans, 2. BEELEBEEHAB(BERITER  R175
bank overdrafts, lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases, S'Z . fﬂ%ﬁﬁ B BERERE  BNEEER
amount due to immediate holding company and loans from directors) HERKREBEENER)RAER BB
divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%. O%aJr#

3. Net debt to equity ratios based on net debts (which include bank 3. FEGERLERBEESFHE(BRERITER R
loans, bank overdrafts, lease liabilities/obligations under finance TT@S‘Z FEAaE MERERE  BENEERR
leases, amount due to immediate holding company and loans from RARFERKREEFHEFREEKFRITER
directors less pledged bank deposits and cash and bank balances) M&ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁmﬁfﬁ)f%?bﬁ%gﬁﬁ,ﬁ'@ﬁﬁiﬁﬂoo%ﬁ
divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%. Ho

4, Interest coverage based on the (loss) profit before tax and interest 4. F BB RIBIRER T AT (B8 5 K R A S BRAZE
divided by the total interest expenses incurred. AT SR AREAE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A wm R AT

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the placing under general mandate

On 23 May 2018, the Company and the placing agent entered
into the placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company has
appointed the placing agent to procure, on a best effort basis, the
placees to subscribe for the placing shares at a price of HK$0.84 per
share.

On 13 June 2018, all the conditions set out in the placing agreement
have been fulfilled and the placing has become unconditional.
On 15 June 2018, 100,000,000 shares were issued at subscription
price of HK$0.84 each and the Company received net proceeds of
approximately HK$81.3 million (after deducting issuing expenses).
The table below sets out the proposed applications of the net
proceeds and actual usage up to 31 December 2019:

SRR FERR
B — R R R

P2018F5 8238 » AR AR ERIBT A S 1
Bl ARFEERIRERERBAZHE
R F AT AIREIR084E THERAERER

,f/'\ °

M2018F6 H13H r BEMEANFMBKEHHEE
ER - MESESHEEKAEKMG - BR2018F6
A158 » AREEFR4B L 2 RBEETT
100,000,000 8% 15 + I UKER P15 5K B FREAI81.3 8
EAT(HBREFEITHIE) - TRETIFABFIEF
HEOWMERS  ANREZE2019F12A31HNER
B

Actual

usage up to
Proposed 31 December Remaining
application 2019 balance

BHZE2019F

12H31B#H
BERR BERER ERER
HKS 'million HKS million HKS million
BEET BEBTT BEBT

Settlement of consideration of ~ #&/5B/E U BB

the potential acquisition B 20.0 20.0 -
General working capital —REEER 613 613 -
81.3 813 -

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 130 employees as at 31 December 2019. The Group
offers competitive remuneration package that is based on overall
market rates and employee performance, as well as performance
of the Group. Remuneration package is comprised of salary,
performance-based bonus, and other benefits including training
and provident funds.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2019.
CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had obligations under finance
leases of approximately HK$7.6 million, which were secured by the
lessors’ charge over the leased assets with net book values of HK$5.2
million as at 31 December 2018.

In addition, as at 31 December 2019, bank deposits of HK$40.1
million (31 December 2018: HK$50.0 million) and a life insurance
contract were pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to
the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the lease liability (31 December
2018: obligation under finance lease) of a solar power system
granted to the Group was secured by the trade receivables of
HK$88,000 (31 December 2018: HK$141,000) and registered capital
of a wholly-owned subsidiary amounted to RMB10 million (31
December 2018: RMB10 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the Financial Statements, the Group
had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars ("USD") and Renminbi
("RMB”). In this respect, the only risk it is faced arose from exposure
mainly to RMB and USD. These risks were mitigated as the Group
held Hong Kong dollars, USD and RMB bank accounts to finance
transactions denominated in these currencies respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider using hedging
instruments in respect of significant foreign currency exposure as
and when appropriate.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Written resolutions of the sole shareholder were passed on 23
June 2017 to adopt the share option scheme (the “Scheme”). No
share options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual
report. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

PROSPECTS

The slowdown in global economy due to the Sino-U.S. trade
disputes, coupled with the social unrest in Hong Kong starting in
the second half of 2019 and the outbreak of the novel coronavirus,
has severely affected the investment climate of the construction
industry, resulting in a sharp decline in the number of projects
for tender as well as a significant reduction in profit margin of
construction projects. Accordingly, the Group is expected to be
mainly focused on completing the projects on hand in the coming
financial year.

As for renewable energy business, it is anticipated the postponed
resumption of work will affect the related results of the Company in
the first half of 2020, yet its impact on the overall revenue of projects
is insignificant. Furthermore, benefited from the introduction of
various policies and measures by official authorities of the PRC to
support its development of renewable energy industry in 2019,
the outlook of the industry remains optimistic. It is expected that
renewable energy business will become the driving force for the
Group's revenue in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
Change of Controlling Shareholder

On 25 January 2019, Condover Assets Limited (“Condover Assets”)
(as vendor) and Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (“Dr. Kan"), Mr. Lee Sai Man
("Mr. SM Lee") and Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (“Mr. Wong") (as guarantors
of Condover Assets) entered into an agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) with CT Vision Investment Limited (“CT Vision
Investment”) (as purchaser), pursuant to which CT Vision Investment
acquired 312,120,000 Shares (representing 51% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company at the relevant time) at a consideration
of HK$262,180,800, equivalent to HK$0.84 per share.

Following the completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement on
19 February 2019, CT Vision Investment made an unconditional
mandatory cash offer (the “Offer”) to acquire all the issued Shares of
the Company not already owned and/or agreed to be acquired by
it or parties acting in concert with it at a price of HK$0.84 per Share.
Immediately after the close of the Offer on 24 April 2019, CT Vision
Investment was interested in additional 40,000 Shares, representing
approximately 0.0065% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company.

Please also refer to the joint announcement issued by the Company
and CT Vision Investment dated 14 February 2019, the composite
document issued by the Company and CT Vision Investment on 3
April 2019, and the joint announcement issued by the Company and
CT Vision Investment dated 24 April 2019.

Change of Directors

(1) Due to a change in control of the Company, after the close
of the Offer on 24 April 2019, Mr. SM Lee, Mr. Wong and
Mr. Kwong Po Lam (the “Resigned Directors”) resigned as
executive Directors with effect from 26 April 2019.

Following the resignation of the Resigned Directors,

(@)  Mr. Wu Rui was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company and the vice chairman of the Board;

(b)  Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory ("Dr. Ho") was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company and the chief

executive officer;

(c)  Ms. Du Yi was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company and the chairlady of the Board;
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(d)  Ms. Yip Man Shan was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company; and

() Dr. Kan resigned as one of the authorised
representatives of the Company and Dr. Ho was
appointed as one of the authorised representatives of
the Company.

(2)  With effect from 16 July 2019,

(@  Mr. Fan Siu Kay resigned as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company;

(b)  Mr. Leung William Wai Kai resigned as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company;

() Mr. Lo Chi Leung resigned as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company;

(d)  Ms.Ng YiKum, Estella was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company;

(e)  Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company;
and

(f)  Dr. Tang Dajie was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company.

(3)  With effect from 24 July 2019, Dr. Kan resigned as executive
Director of the Company.

Change of Company Name and Stock Short Name

On 14 June 2019, the special resolution approving the change of
the English name of the Company from “Win Win Way Construction
Holdings Ltd.” to “CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited” and
the adoption of “H XA 15 (Bl ) 1= R B BR A 7" as the dual
foreign name in Chinese of the Company was duly passed by the
Shareholders at the EGM held on 14 June 2019.

Accordingly, the English stock short name of the Company was
changed from "WIN WIN WAY" to “CT VISION” and the Chinese
stock short name of the Company was changed from "B ZE 2" to
" R ZR{Z" for trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 5 August 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors during the year end up to
the date of this annual report is set out below:

Executive Director

Mr. Wu Rui (“Mr. Wu"), aged 45, is an executive Director and
the vice chairman of our Group. Mr. Wu has extensive experience
in international trading business and transnational investment.
He graduated from Shanghai Customs College in July 1995
and subsequently joined the Ford Motor Company, a vehicle
manufacturer based in the United States of America, as a customs
specialist since September 1995, where he was responsible for
analysing the import and export data, managing the supply chain
of the company and conducting research on General Agreement
on Tariff and Trade. From December 1998 to January 2002, Mr. Wu
worked for GE Healthcare Corp. (formerly known as Amersham
Pharmaceutical PLC), a company with principal business of research
and development of medical technology and life science as the
director of the global supply chain development (Far East) and was
responsible for managing the supply chain of the company and the
project “Sourcing from China”. From March 2002 to June 2015, he
served as the general manager of Beijing Grand Integrity Merchants
Company* QtREEREREE B AR (a company principally
engaged in trading of construction materials), where he was
responsible for looking for global business opportunities in relation
to new material of architecture. Since December 2015, Mr. Wu
served as the managing director of Xinjiang Kaige Energy Company,
a company that is principally engaged in clean energy business,
where he was responsible for searching for global green technology
business opportunities and handling new-energy-related projects of
the company.
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Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (“Dr. Ho"), aged 42, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of our Group. Dr. Ho
obtained his bachelor degree of Business Accounting from
the Monash University of Australia in 2002 and completed his
dissertation of “One Belt, One Road Post-Doctoral Research
Programme” at the University of Oxford in May 2018. Dr. Ho has
extensive experience in finance and investment, especially in the
renewable energy and technology, media and telecom (TMT)
industry. He has previously participated in the investment in smart
energy cities in the PRC, which involved green building construction
projects and application of renewable energy in the construction
sector. Dr. Ho is currently the chairman of Asia-Pacific Smarter
Energy Alliance (BB X% ZBLIRE K BR). Dr. Ho was an executive
director of China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited, a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8132)
from May 2013 to February 2019. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 899)
from February 2015 to October 2016, and an independent non-
executive director of Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited
(now known as Koala Financial Group Limited), a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8226) from April 2014 to
August 2016.

Mr. Lee Kai Lun (“Mr. Lee”), aged 71, is an executive Director of our
Group. He obtained degrees of Bachelor Arts in Architectural Studies
and Bachelor of Architecture from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1970 and 1972 respectively. He has been a corporate
member of Royal Institute of British Architects since February 1974,
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects since February
1974 and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects since July
2006. He is also a registered architect under Architects Registration
Board of Hong Kong and authorised person (List of Architects) with
the Buildings Department of Hong Kong. Pursuant to section 45 of
the Buildings Ordinance, he has been appointed as a member of the
Appeal Tribunal Panel of the Development Bureau of Hong Kong
since 2009. He has been the sole proprietor of Kailun Lee Chartered
Architect which has been providing architect and interior design
services since 1974. Since September 2012, he served as a partner
of KLDL Consultants which provides development and design
consultancy services.
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Mr. Guo Jianfeng (“Mr. Guo”), aged 48, is an executive Director
of our Group. He holds a degree in Engineering Management
from Jiangsu Radio and Television University* (L& EEEBR
KE) in the PRC. He also holds the professional qualification as
certified senior engineer issued by Human Resources and Social
Security Development of Jiangsu Province* (T# & A 71 &R H
HE{REEEE) of the PRC. He has over 26 years of experience in the
construction industry and has participated in various large-scale
construction projects and new energy investment projects. From
August 1991 to June 2006, he worked in Yancheng Transaction
Bureau, Jiangsu Province* (T %k Bi3 238 /3), holding his last
position as project manager. From July 2006 to March 2010, he
worked in China City Construction 2nd Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd.*
(FFIMESE — TR BAER AT, holding his last position as branch
company general manager. From April 2010 to August 2014, he was
the chief executive officer of Jiangsu Zhongmeng Energy Group
Co. Ltd.* (L& BBaEIR&E B AR A R]). From September 2014 to
October 2015, he was the general manager of the Jiangsu branch
company of Tian Hong Yang Guang New Energy Investment Co.
Ltd.* (R[5 ¥ 82 IRIZ & B PR A B]). He has joined Jiangsu Zhong
Tian Hui New Energy Technology Co. Ltd.* (L&A KEFEERE
FABR A A]) since November 2015 as chief operation officer. He is
currently a director of TIEN New Energy Development Limited.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (“Ms. Du”), aged 77, is a non-executive Director and the
Chairlady of our Group. Ms. Du is a daughter of Mr. Du Zhongyuan,
one of the renowned revolutionary martyrs of China during the
second Sino-Japanese War. From March 1998 to March 2013, Ms. Du
served as a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and has currently been an honourable retired member.
Since September 1995, she has been acting as a director of Doo’s
Trading Limited* (ft G B S BR A 7)), a company with principal
business of foreign investment introduction to infrastructure
development in the PRC and export agency for coal.

Ms. Yip Man Shan (“Ms. Yip”), aged 67, is a non-executive
Director of our Group. Ms. Yip is a daughter of Mr. Ye Jianying
(the PRC's Communist general, Marshal of the People’s Liberation
Army and chairman of the Standing Committee of the National
People’s Congress from 1978 to 1983). She is currently the legal
representative of CITIC Land (Guangzhou) Co. Limited* (F{Z & %
(EM)ABRA 7)), whose principal business is property investment
and management.
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Independent non-executive directors

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (“Ms. Ng”), aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Group.

Ms. Ng is currently an executive director, the deputy chairman, the
chief strategy officer, the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (stock
code: 417) and also a director of its certain subsidiaries. She is
currently an independent non-executive director of Powerlong
Commercial Management Holdings Limited (stock code: 9909),
CMGE Technology Group Limited (stock code: 302), Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 882) and Comba
Telecom Systems Holdings Limited (stock code: 2342).

Prior to 2003, Ms. Ng worked in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in a number of senior positions with her last position as the
senior vice president of the Listing Division. She was an executive
director of Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 101) from
September 2005 to November 2007. She was the chief financial
officer of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2007) from January 2008 to April 2014. From September 2008 to
July 2015, Ms. Ng served as an independent non-executive director
of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2882). She served as an independent non-executive director of
China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited, the shares
of which are listed by way of American Depositary Shares on
the Nasdaq Global Market in the United States, from September
2012 to August 2015. She served as an independent director of
DS Healthcare Group, Inc.,, the shares of which were listed on the
Nasdaq Capital Market in the United States until they were delisted
in December 2016, from May 2016 to May 2017. Ms. Ng served
as an independent non-executive director of China Power Clean
Energy Development Company Limited (stock code: 735), which was
delisted from the Stock Exchange in August 2019.

Ms. Ng is a qualified accountant and obtained the Master of
Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. She is an associate of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an associate of
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Ng has been an elected member of Quality Tourism Services
Association Governing Council (Retailer Category) since 28 February
2019. Ms. Ng has also contributed her time to various public service
appointments, including being a co-opted member of the audit
committee of the Hospital Authority from December 2002 until
November 2013.
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Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (“Mr. Wong”), aged 56, is an
independent non-executive Director of our Group.

Mr. Wong is currently a Partner and Head of the Commercial
Department of Gallant, a firm of solicitors and notaries in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong has contributed his time to various public service
appointments, including being the chairman of the Community
Relations Committee of The Law Society of Hong Kong. He has
also been appointed to serve on various charitable organisations
as honourable legal advisor, including the Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association, the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Charitable Foundation Limited, Po Leung Kuk, Hong Kong Watch
Manufacturers Association Ltd and the Hong Kong Society for the
Aged.

Mr. Wong obtained the bachelor of laws degree and the master
of laws degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong also
obtained the master degree in business administration from the
Open University of Hong Kong. He was admitted as a solicitor of
Hong Kong in 1994 and a solicitor of the England and Wales in 1995
and is currently a practising lawyer in Hong Kong. He is also a notary
public, China-appointed attesting officer and certified tax adviser of
Hong Kong.

Acting as the legal advisor of various companies in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC, Mr. Wong has extensive experience in providing
legal services concerning finances, securities, trusts, guarantees,
mergers and acquisitions and other cross-border transactions.

Dr. Tang Dajie (“Dr. Tang”), aged 52, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Group.

Dr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in investment, financing
and corporate management. He held various senior positions in
different companies, including the Vice President of Shenzhen
Capital Group Company Limited, the Deputy General Manager of
Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company Limited, the Managing Director
of Shenzhen High-tech Investment Group Company Limited, the
Manager of the Department of Investment of E Fund Management
Company Limited and the Director of China Southern Asset
Management. Since October 2015, Dr. Tang has been the chairman
and the founding partner of Triwise Capital Management Company
Limited.
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Dr. Tang also serves as the Vice Chairman of Shenzhen Venture
Capital Association, the Executive Vice President of Shenzhen
Science and Technology Entrepreneur Promotion Association,
Vice President of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce and
a part-time professor of Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics, Shenzhen Audencia Business School, Xidian University
and China University of Mining and Technology. Dr. Tang obtained
his bachelor’s degree in business management from the Beijing
University of Chemical Technology in July 1990, his master's degree
in monetary banking from Xiamen University in July 1995 and his
doctorate degree in industrial economics from Jinan University in
June 2007.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lo Chun Man (“Mr. Lo"), aged 39, is the financial controller, the
company secretary and one of the authorised representatives of our
Group.

Mr. Lo has over 16 years of extensive working experience in the
fields of accounting, financing and auditing disciplines. Mr. Lo was
the Deputy General Manager of the Finance Department of China
Aerospace International Holdings Limited (stock code: 31) from
April 2016 to June 2019. He was the Finance Manager of the same
company from December 2008 to April 2016. Before joining China
Aerospace International Holdings Limited, he worked in Deloitte
Touche Tomatsu from September 2003 to December 2008 with his
last position as a Senior.

Mr. Lo obtained the Degree of Master of Science in Professional
Accountancy from University of London and Degree of Bachelor of
Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

*

For identification purpose only.
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The Board submits the annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the "Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands and
domiciled in Hong Kong. The principal place of business of the
Company at Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in building construction
business, sales of piles and renewable energy business. The activities
and particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are shown under note
18 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group, with the description of the
principal risk and uncertainties, for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the likely future development, are included in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report
on pages 7 to 16, which forms part of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 63.7% (2018:
84.6%) of the Group's total revenue. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 21.1% (2018: 39.1%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately 60.9%
(2018: 58.4%) of the Group’s total subcontracting fee. The largest
subcontractor accounted for approximately 20.3% (2018: 29.3%) of
the Group's total subcontracting fee.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 the Group's five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 57.3% (2018:
78.1%). The largest supplier accounted for approximately 22.1%
(2018: 53.6%) of the Group's total material costs.
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At no time during the year have directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company)
had any interest in these major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 77 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

BANK LOANS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and bank overdrafts of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 24 to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are included in the
section headed “Financial Summary” in this annual report on page
200, which forms part of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Company did not enter into any contract, other than the
contracts of service with the directors or any person engaged in the
full-time employment of the Company, whereby any individual, firm
or body corporate undertakes the management and administration
of the whole, or any substantial part of any business of the
Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$153 million (31 December 2018: HK$161 million).

Movements of the reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 80 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
note 14 to the Financial Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the Company passed
on 23 June 2017 for the purpose of recognizing and motivating the
contributions that the eligible participants have made or may make
to the Group.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options to (i)
an executive; (ii) the director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group;
(iii) the consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group; (iv)
the person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional
or other services to any member of the Group; and (v) the close
associate of any of the foregoing persons, to subscribe for shares in
the Company in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the acceptance letter of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HKS$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received
by the Company within the period specified in the letter containing
the offer of the grant of the option. No offer shall be capable
of or remain open for acceptance after the expiry of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date.
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The subscription price of a share shall not be less than the highest of
(i) the nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date; and (iii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date.

The share options granted are exercisable at any time during a
period as the Directors may determine which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of an offer for the grant of the option, subject to
the provisions for early termination contained in the Scheme, and
provided that the Directors may determine the minimum period
for which an option has to be held or other restrictions before its
exercise.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of
shares of the Company in issue on the Listing Date (i.e. 51,200,000
shares). The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% in aggregate of
the shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date of adoption.

No share options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under
the Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual
report and the total number of shares available for grant under
the Scheme was 51,200,000 Shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company of the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer) (appointed on 26 April 2019)
Mr. Lee Kai Lun

Mr. Guo Jianfeng

Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (resigned on 24 July 2019)

Mr. Lee Sai Man (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Kwong Po Lam (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (appointed on 26 April 2019)
Ms. Yip Man Shan (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Lo Chi Leung (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general
meeting of the Company provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific item) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election.

Further, pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
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In accordance with Articles 108 and 112 of the Articles of
Association, Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory, Mr. Guo Jianfeng, Ms. Ng Yi
Kum, Estella, Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip and Dr. Tang Dajie shall
retire from office at the 2020 annual general meeting (the “2020
AGM"). All of the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 22 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2020
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is not provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses and
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in the execution
of his duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to such Director. There is appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Group. Such provision was in force as of date of
this annual report and during the financial year ended 31 December
2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at the 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to recorded in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Long position in the Shares of associated corporation of
the Company:

EERRG  RHIESHTHES

RERSFAERMEE - ARF) - FEEMZER
nE - MERARKRARAMEBARSREITEEER
HABREEARaNIMNEARS « THEAH

EENESTHERERAR

MR2019F12A318 » EFERARE REEE EZE
(E&ERFHFLAEGG)MIRG  ABARGHE
TP ATHEA REESMAEIEFEXVIE R
SO ENEME AN R MR ATHERE AR (BT
BEFEHRABRIEBIECEEEXRAER
e AR ) (o) IRIEEFH R EEHIFE352
IEBERZIGFTIEE M E LR LA R ()
RIEFHN ERBIMI S+ M LT AESETT
FBHEX SIS ETA([ZESFR] D) BANE AR QF
KB TR MR BT

(a) RELQFEBEENROPHER

Name of
Name of associated Capacity/ Approximate
Directors corporation nature of interest Total interests Percentage
B LB BB Y Vg 131 A BB
Dr.Ho CT Vision Investment Limited  Beneficial owner 448,000 22.4%
gL ("CT Vision Investment”) BREA A

PREEREGRAR]

([FREERE]D)

Mr. Wu CT Vision Investment Beneficial owner 156,000 7.8%
REHE PRAERE EmEEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

So far as was known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2019, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group:

FERRREZFHERS

TREERTA - 2019F 128318 MFAL3E
EFHARBEEITRAS)RRMD S AARERG
HH AR AEBIRIEES R EENEXVETE?
K35 B ESZR R AR B S B 32 AT i BE M A 2 sk
KE - AR SRR R A B T ERSE T
Al B AR IRER R E ERANEMERRAE
B10%s A ER R B ok M s

Percentage of

Capacity/ Number of shareholding in
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held the Company
BRERB MR P Vg 131 FERGHE (AL RAREESL
CT Vision Investment Beneficial interest 312,160,000 51.01%
PREERE BEmiEs
Ms. Lin Zhiling (“Ms. Lin")' Interest in a controlled 312,160,000 51.01%
MEEZ T ([t ]) corporation

EEGEE R
Condover Assets Limited (“Condover Assets”)  Beneficial interest 71,880,000 11.75%
Condover Assets Limited ([ Condover Assets ) EziEa
Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (“Dr. Kan")? Interest in a controlled 71,880,000 11.75%
EEHH T ([EHEL]): corporation

EEGEE R
Mr. Lee Sai Man ("Mr. SM Lee")? Interest in a controlled 71,880,000 11.75%
THREA(FEE]): corporation

EEGEE R
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai ("“Mr. Wong")* Interest in a controlled 71,880,000 11.75%
EREEAE(ELE]D corporation

EEGEE R
Ms. Poon Man Yee® Interest of spouse 71,880,000 11.75%
BBt [ Er T
Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani¢ Interest of spouse 71,880,000 11.75%
Sheba Kishinchand DaswaniZz ¢ [IREp s 4o
Ms. Ho Lai Kuen’ Interest of spouse 71,880,000 11.75%
(GF- cEeqund BB s
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Notes:

Ms. Lin beneficially owns 44.80% of the issued share capital of CT
Vision Investment. Therefore, Ms. Lin is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by CT Vision Investment for the
purpose of the SFO.

Dr. Kan beneficially owns 33 1/3 % of the issued share capital of
Condover Assets. Therefore, Dr. Kan is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose of
the SFO.

Mr. SM Lee beneficially owns 33 1/3 % of the issued share capital of
Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. SM Lee is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose of
the SFO.

Mr. Wong beneficially owns 33 1/3 % of the issued share capital of
Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose of
the SFO.

Ms. Poon Man Yee is the spouse of Dr. Kan. Accordingly Ms. Poon Man
Yee is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in which Dr.
Kan is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is the spouse of Mr. SM Lee.
Accordingly Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the Shares in which Mr. SM Lee is interested for the
purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Ho Lai Kuen is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Accordingly Ms. Ho Lai
Kuen is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in which
Mr. Wong is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were

not aware of any other person (other than the Directors) who had,
or was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested
in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of/share capital

carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of

any member of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
Interests in Securities” above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
or their associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 32 to
the Financial Statements.

None of these related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction (as defined in the Listing Rules) that is required to be
disclosed.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 50.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund prescribed
by the Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Save as the aforesaid, the Group did not
participate in any other pension schemes during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes in directors’ information in respect of the period between
the publication date of the 2019 Interim Report and this report,
which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the requirement
of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out in the section of
"Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct of
dealings in securities of the Company by Directors. Upon specific
enquires of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the disclosure in note 35 to the Financial Statements, there
is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or the
Group after 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2020
AGM.

By order of the Board

DuYi
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 13 July 2020
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report of
the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules upon the Listing. All
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report in response
to the specific enquiry made by the Company.

The Board has established written guidelines no less exacting than
the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the company as required under the CG Code.
No incident of non-compliance of such guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board acts in good faith, with due diligence and care, to
discharge its duties concerning the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The primary role of the Board is to protect
and entrance long term shareholders’ value; it also oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance of
the Group to ensure that good corporate governance policies and
practices are implemented within the Group. The management is
responsible for the execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and the implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer) (appointed on 26 April 2019)
Mr. Lee Kai Lun

Mr. Guo Jianfeng

Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (resigned on 24 July 2019)

Mr. Lee Sai Man (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Kwong Po Lam (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (appointed on 26 April 2019)
Ms. Yip Man Shan (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Lo Chi Leung (resigned on 16 July 2019)

The biographies of the Directors during the year and up to the date
of this annual report and the relationships among them are set
out in the “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management”
section on pages 17 to 22 of this annual report.

CHAIRLADY OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”")

The Chairlady of the Board is Ms. Du Yi and the CEO of the
Company is Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory. The roles of the Chairlady of
the Board and the CEO of the Company are segregated to ensure
their respective independence, accountability and responsibility.
The major duties of the Chairlady are to provide leadership to the
Board and spearhead overall corporate development and strategic
planning whilst the CEO is responsible for implementing the
decisions and strategy approved by the Board and managing day-
to-day operations of the Group with the support of the executive
Directors.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the
Group’s management team in accordance with the directions set
by the Board and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal
control system is in place and the Group’s business conforms to
applicable laws and regulations. The executive Directors bring a
good balance of skills and experience to the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors provide a wide range of expertise
and experience and bring independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group’s strategies, development, performance and
risk management through their contribution at the Board and
committee meetings.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors provide their
independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. The independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participation provides adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders including the review
of continuing connected transactions described below. The Board
consists of three independent non-executive Directors and two of
them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Board confirms
that the Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of independence for the
Year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers such
Directors to be independent.

The Directors are fully aware that they individually and collectively
accountable to shareholders.
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The executive Directors have entered into employment contracts
with the Company and each of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed on
a specific term of three years. Notwithstanding the specific term
of appointments, the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) provide that every Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire shall retire from
office by rotation and be eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with
other senior executive, is delegated with responsibilities for
implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board
from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to
review the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole,
co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of
management including circumstances where management should
report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs
of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS

ExgEa

ey

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall FHEFHRITSHUTREHEEERBEUAL

strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of

the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through @zl N2 HE&Z o

electronic means of communication.

AEENEERVBERR - EFARFGANET

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should 1R X EATAIMTABEXAIl - EESET

meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four

times a year.

The attendance of the respective Directors to the board meeting &BESFANHEEEZS S

during the year are set out below:

HHE EXeREEFARELMR -

WEREINAT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) (appointed on 26 April 2019)
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer) (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Lee Kai Lun

Mr. Guo Jianfeng

Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (resigned on 24 July 2019)
Mr. Lee Sai Man (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Kwong Po Lam (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Ms. Yip Man Shan (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Lo Chi Leung (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Number of
attendance/
Number of
meetings entitled
to attend
HEHE B
HENEEYA
YiTES
RIEE(BIEE)(R2019F4526 HEZT) 4/5
AEEE LT (7THER)(R2019F4H26 HEZF) 5/5
TR B A 9/9
Bl S 7/9
BB+ (R2019%7 H24 A BHE) 6/6
BRI 4 (10201994 5 26 H BEHF) 4/4
BB (1201994 5 26 H BHF) 4/4
BMRIRIE £ (10201944 5 26 H BHF) 4/4
FHTES
MRt (FE)(R2019F4 526 HEZF) 4/5
UM+ (120194 H26 HEZ(T) 4/5
BUkHTES
mBZEL L (R2019F7 F16HEZ(T) 3/3
BKE L (R2019%F7 F16 HEZF) 3/3
BANEL(R2019%7F16 HEZF) 3/3
BB A (10201947 516 H BHEF) 4/6
RRBESLE(R20199F7 516 HBHF) 6/6
EEREE(R2019F7 168 L) 6/6
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EEREEHXERE

OF DIRECTORS

All Directors confirmed to comply with the provision of the CG A E ESHRARENEN—HETEBSEEE
Code in relation to continuous professional development during ZESDEEATANEX - At - EEC 2 ,\ﬁ
the year. In doing so, the Directors have undertaken various forms of ~ BEARATER - E=RE LB ENIEITH -
activities relevant to the Company’s business, Directors’ duties and

responsibilities.

The record of continuous professional development relatingto B FMBMEREZEAEHRA R  EF0E
director’s duties and regulatory and business development that SHAEHESBREUNEENERLENEER
have been received by the Directors for the period from the Listing 23 EE0EEH0T -

Date and up to the date of this annual report are summarised as

follows:

Type of Training

(Note)
IR

CiE3)
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) (appointed on 26 April 2019) RIREE(BIFE)(R2019%4 526 HEZT) B
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer) (appointed on 26 April 2019) (el {8 418 + (770483 ) (1K2019%E4 26 HEZE (T) B
Mr. Lee Kai Lun MBS SR £ B
Mr. Guo Jianfeng RIELAE AB
Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (resigned on 24 July 2019) BESIEL(R2019%F7H24H§HF) B
Mr. Lee Sai Man (resigned on 26 April 2019) TR LA (R2019%F4 526 HFHE) B
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (resigned on 26 April 2019) BB (201994 5 26 H BEHF) B
Mr. Kwong Po Lam (resigned on 26 April 2019) BRI & (R 201954 A 26 H BHE) B
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (appointed on 26 April 2019) MR (EE)(R2019F4 526 HEZ(T) B
Ms. Yip Man Shan (appointed on 26 April 2019) E XMz L (R2019F4 /26 HEZ(E) B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019) BEZER L (R2019%7 516 BEZ(T) AB
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019) BKBEER2019%7 516 HEZT) B
Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019) BANEL(R2019E7 816 AEZ ) B
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019) BRI (201967 B 16 HE(L) B
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019) RIBESE(R2019F7 16 HET) B
Mr. Lo Chi Leung (resigned on 16 July 2019) ERR&E(R2019F7A16H8HF) AB
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Note:
Type of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to,
briefings, seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals,
magazines and relevant publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (collectively, the “Board Committee”), to oversee
specific aspects of the Company'’s affairs. The Board Committees are
established with specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the Company's website
and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The members of the Board
committees during the year are set out below:

Audit Committee

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (Chairlady) (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Lo Chi Leung (Chairman) (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (Chairman) (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Mr. Wu Rui (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Fan Siu Kay (Chairman) (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Lee Kai Lun (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019)

40 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

BAE

ERIERY

A HESIRE
WIE R Ty

BRETRREHRE T -

B: BIEAEMMHMEET W= BT MR
AR

EEXRET

EXecRUETZES  HEZZES - M
ZEELREZES(MHEREFEEREE)) U
EBARREBNEEHR EFXZEE9TA
FTEEEBERE  ZETIEMIAZBSHER
LBE  BEXZ8eNBESETHNARFHE
Uk MR RRBRER A AAQRR
HR o

REEZESTEMBUIFRTESTEN - B &
SREEeNFANKEFIIWT

EREEE

BEZE L+ (FE)(R2019F7H16 HEZ(T)
BKB A (R2019F7 A 16 HEZ(E)
BAMNE L (R2019F7 F16 HEZ(F)
EERKAE(EE)(R2019F7 16 HEHT)
BRB LS (2019467 H 16 H BFHEF)
PARES A (R2019%F7 F 16 H BT )

¥yMEse

BKBRE(EE)(R2019F7H16 HEZ(T)
RIRAE(R20196F 4526 HEZE)
BHEEL+(R2019F7 H16 HEEIE)
BHMEE LA (L) (R20199F7 F 16 HBHE)
F BRI 55 A (7820194 4. 26 A BFHT)

PABIES A (R20194E7 16 A BHE)

Annual Report 2019 Fif



Corporate Governance Report
N
ﬁ:\% = /@#&%

Nomination Committee

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (appointed on 26 April 2019)

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019)
Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Lee Kai Lun (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (resigned on 26 April 2019)

Mr. Lo Chi Leung (Chairman) (resigned on 16 July 2019)
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019)

Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Audit Committee on 23 June 2017 with
written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than those set
out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.
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MR+ (FE)(R2019F4H26 HEZEIE)
B EE+ (1201994526 A HEZE (F)
MBZEL L (R2019F7 16 HEZ(F)
BKB A (R2019F7 A 16 HEZE)
BANBE(R2019F 7 F16 HEZ(F)
BS54 (1820194 4.5 26 H BT )

B E 4518+ (201 94F 4.5 26 H BT )
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, four Audit Committee  REE2019F12A831HILFE @ BEXLE@LHE
meetings were held. The attendance of each member to the Audit TR @%#% - SKELFERZE @ ENICEHE
Committee Meeting is as follows: HymT -
Audit Committee
meeting attended/
Eligible to attend
HE/RERLE
NWERZES
=61 G
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019) mBEE L (R2019%F7 F16 HEZ(E) 1/1
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019) KB RE(R2019E7 A 16 HEZ(T) 1/1
Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019) SANBL(R2019%F7 A 16 HEZ(T) 1/1
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019) BBE A (R2019%F7 A 16 AFHE) 2/3
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019) PAREEA (R2019%7 F16H5HF) 33
Mr. Lo Chi Leung (resigned on 16 July 2019) EERFKAE(K2019%7 5 16H5HE) 3/3

The Audit Committee met the external auditors and Chairman/
Chairlady on 29 March 2019 and 28 August 2019 respectively,
without the presence of the executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee on 23
June 2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting
terms those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include determining/reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his
own remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management are set out in the sections headed “Directors’
Remuneration” and “Remuneration of the Senior Management” in
this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each

FMEES

NABIER2017F6 A3BKR Y FMEES » WET
ETBRTEEATAMNERNEABESE -
TNEZE ST EREREET BT ENRITE
ERSARERABNETINGESE  2EREERSH
ERENFHRELREBEYR LA EERNESS
RINEZ ¢ URERIHIRT S H B R R R
REPERFUBRRBEESIHAMNBEAZ
HETEAFHM -

EEEREEABNHFNGFEFBHENLFR
[BEEHM N [ SRERASHHISE -

REZE2019F12A31RILFE  HFMHEEGLH
TTMREH - SBEHFES @1@/\;\23 COERES

member of the Remuneration Committee is as follows: AT -
Remuneration
Committee
meeting attended/
Eligible to attend
HE/SERLRE
WEMZEES
23¥A
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (Chairman) (appointed on 16 July 2019) BB RE(LE)(R2019F7 7 16HEZE) 0/0
Mr. Wu Rui (appointed on 26 April 2019) RINEE(R019F1H26 HEZ(F) 1/1
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019) BBEERT(R2019%7A16HEZ ) 0/0
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (Chairman) (resigned on 16 July 2019) BBRTE (L) (K2019%F7 F 16 HEHE) 22
Mr. Lee Kai Lun (resigned on 26 April 2019) FIRRBA 5 4 (1 2019%4 H 26 HEHT) 1/1
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019) RIBERE(R2019F7 516 HAFHE) 22
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 23 June
2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to skills, industry and
regional experience, background, race, gender and other qualities
etc. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also
take into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board
for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

At present, there are 9 members in the Board of the Company,
including 6 male directors and 3 female directors. All directors
possess university or above educational level whereas some possess
professional qualifications in accountancy, chartered secretary
and laws etc., and have ample experiences of giant enterprise
management, financial management, legal and human resources
etc. in different fields.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each
member of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:

REZ2019FN2A3HILLFE @ RRZEo TR
TRREH SKENFREZESSHRMNLE
Hymr
Nomination
Committee

meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

HE/RERLE

NREZES

228A

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (appointed on 26 April 2019) HBaL(FE)(R2019F4 826 HEZ(T) 11
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (appointed on 26 April 2019) AEEE L (R2019F4F26 HEZ(T) 1/1
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (appointed on 16 July 2019) RAZEL L (R2019%7 F16 HEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (appointed on 16 July 2019) BB RE(R2019F7 A 16 HEZ(F) 0/0
Dr. Tang Dajie (appointed on 16 July 2019) BAREL(R2019F7 A 16 HEZ(F) 0/0
Mr. Lee Kai Lun (resigned on 26 April 2019) FIRRER S (R2019%F 4 A 26 HFHE) 1/1
Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (resigned on 26 April 2019) BESHEL(R2019%F4 526 AEF) 1/1
Mr. Lo Chi Leung (Chairman) (resigned on 16 July 2019) BEERAE(EE)(K2019%F7F16HEHE) 22
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (resigned on 16 July 2019) BB A (R2019F7 F16HEHT) 2/2
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (resigned on 16 July 2019) RIBERE(R2019%7 516 AFHE) 22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code by Directors and relevant employees, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets out
the process of identification, evaluation and management of the
principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its divisions on a quarterly basis and
establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems.

The Group has maintained internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to revenue,
purchase and expenditure, inventory and human resources etc.,
to ensure proper accounting records are kept so that reliable
financial reporting can be provided, the effectiveness and
efficiency of operation can be achieved, and the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and safeguarding of assets can
be maintained. These procedures, together with the Company's
compliance manual, have also shaped the control environment
in which and how the Group operates, including the budgeting
controls, investment decision making, risk assessment and practices
of corporate governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable protection against errors, losses and fraud.
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The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different aspects
of the Group.

The Company has engaged ZHONGHUI ANDA Risk Services
Limited to conduct a review on the effectiveness of the internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The review covered certain operational procedures and included
recommendations for improving and strengthening the internal
control system. No significant area of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance, control and risk management of
the Group has been identified.

The Boards has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and is satisfied that the Group
has complied with the Code in respect of internal control during the
year.

Regular meetings were held between the executive Directors
and senior management to review and monitor the business
and financial performance against the targets, the progress of
certification and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group's resources in comparison to the budgets,
and the operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with
the regulations that have material impact to the Group’s business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of the
Directors and management so that significant strategic, financial,
operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are timely
identified and dealt with in proper manner, which significant issues
are reported back to the Board for their attention.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Group's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquires.
While any potential inside information will be escalated to the
executive meetings or the Board via the established reporting
channels, the Directors will assess and determine if the inside
information of the Group exist where timely disclosure is required
to be made by way of an announcement published on the Stock
Exchange website. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorised access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited.

46

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

ARRNBWERIBY N EZEPT - A > BF
SCLEMRFECNER  EAEETRATEETA
EEUE

AEBEZEFRELZERBREREFRAA  HA
EFRNEE 2019512 A31 B 1EFE /9 7R 2B ] Y
EREERRT - ZRFRES TEERF - I
IR RIGR ARSI HI R AR HER - &
BT EREBENE EHEE - AR T
il & BB B IR A E KRB -

EEEC I AKBARESREMKY - XE
MASBERFAERABESETTRINRE

WTEFESAERETHRTEE Uik
ERFBLMBRAGHLBENEER aEPE
BEERAONEE  AEEERERREE
BEHL  UREETHENER - AEERAEE
ETHAREXRBEEATENEERT - LB
SHEREREFTHEEERNARENE  UtM<E
RERE - M 2EBRARREBRIEERENR
BRIREER  WABESXRE  MEAER
ANEEGER

BARERELREEARER  AEECHERER
R UREERTEHN EREEEHRBELRRES
ARAEEES BB SRAEEASNARE
BRt—®KiEs - EREEAREE RS E B
EWHHRRELLRNTERIETS  EFHKF
HEREBEAKREREFEARHEE  MAKRE
REF Rt ERRANEERKRE - 2525
REEH  WERBZEEEDRMERARNTHES

Annual Report 2019 Fif



Corporate Governance Report

ﬂ:\ Hr/\lil #& =

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy on 31 December 2019.
The Board may, as it deems appropriate, determine and distribute an
interim dividend to shareholders of the Company from time to time.
The Board may recommend the payment of an annual dividend,
subject to the approval by shareholders of the Company at annual
general meetings.

The Company’s dividend policy is to allow shareholders to share
the Company’s profits whist preserving adequate reserves for
the Company's future development. Subject to the approval of
shareholders and requirement of relevant laws, if the Group makes
a profit, the operating environment remains stable and the Group
has no plans for material investment or capital contribution, the
Company shall pay annual dividends to its shareholders. The Board
may, from time to time, pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends as the Directors deem reasonable to the profit of the
Group. Moreover, the Board may, where considered appropriate,
declare special dividends.

Considerations:

In deciding or proposing the number of distribution and the amount
and form of dividend for any financial year/period, the Board shall
consider the following factors:

(@)  the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and respective members of the Group;

(c) the debt-to-equity ratio, rate of return on equity and relevant
financial covenants of the Group;

(d) any restrictions imposed by the lenders of the Group in terms
of dividend payment;

(e)  the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(f)  the Group’s general economic conditions, business cycle
of the Group’s business and other internal and external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

(g) any other factors the Board may consider appropriate.
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The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that a dividend will be declared in any particular amount
for any given period.

FORM OF DIVIDEND

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
dividend may be paid in cash. The Board may consider bonus
issue, and its relevant basis must comply with applicable laws and
regulations.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company annually. Details of
the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 to the Financial

Statements.
REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of
senior management is listed below by band:

Band of remuneration

KBERBFELR BT RER
EIRERRE SRS ©

G ERIEE HIRAE

REFRK

BREARAMMABMEEMA - REATIAESIK

ff - EFERAZEBITAR - LHMEELAT
FRRREM ©

EEHM

EEBE DR BEENRY - BEERRAURE

’ilm%%%E o bSh - BEEHFMEFHALQE
e &Eﬂ‘ - BHESHHMFBERNYH
#E?EBHEE

= REE A B M

REZ2019F 12A31BIEFE o EBEAERN
FENEESH T

Number of Person

HENEE A
HK$ 1,000,000 or below
1,000,000/ 7Tk LA T~ 3

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remunerations paid or
payable to Deloitte Touche Tomatsu in respect of its audit services is
HK$1,900,000.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. In
preparing the Financial Statements which give a true and fair view, it
is fundamental that the appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The statement of the external auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the Financial
Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 70 to 76 of this annual report. The Directors were not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company's company secretary, Mr. Lo Chun Man, coordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and is the primary
contract person within the Company for all matters relating to the
duties and responsibilities of the company secretary. All Directors
have access to company secretary to ensure that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, he had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. For details of his biography, please refer to the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

We seriously take care of the shareholders’ interest to ensure that
they are treated fairly and are able to exercise their shareholders’
rights effectively. Shareholders are entitled by the Articles
of Association and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend meetings
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
and put forward proposals. Such requisition should be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary for such purpose and
should specify the objects of the meeting.
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The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of
the Company under the Articles of Association and the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph
to make written requisition to require the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

In case a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited together
with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to the company
secretary at the Company principal place of business (Room Nos.
808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong) or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office of the Company. The notice should be given at least seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders and
the market. The annual shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company
with its shareholders and for shareholder participation. At the
annual general meeting of the Company, the Directors (or their
delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders
and answer their enquires. In addition, the Company’s website
(http://www.ctvision994.com) contains extensive company
information which is easily accessible.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in the section headed
“Significant Events” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this annual report, no amendments were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company.

ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries may put to the Board through the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor,
Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (email:
info@ctvision994.com).
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called “ESG”") Report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Year 2019"), with an aim to provide details of the
system establishment and performance of the Group in respect
of sustainable development to both the internal and external
stakeholders.

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities made by of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), highlighted the environmental and
social measures and activities of the Group during the Year 2019.
Corporate governance is addressed separately in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of construction
and related services, which mainly included (a) building
construction business, (b) sales of piles, and (c) renewable energy
business.

The scope of this ESG report mainly includes policies, data and
activities of the office in Hong Kong (the "Hong Kong Office”)
and the offices located in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") (the "PRC Offices”) and the Group’s construction services in
Hong Kong during the Year 2019. Unless otherwise specified, the
disclosed environmental and social KPIs covers Hong Kong Office,
PRC Offices and the following construction sites in relation to three
environmental aspects and eight social aspects:

Mei Tin Road project — superstructure works;

Airport project — foundation works;

Shatin project — foundation works;

Tai Mong Tsai project — foundation works; and

Wong Chuk Hang project — foundation works.

Annual Report 2019 4§

BRAERE

PREE (B EBAR QT (AT ) RAR
EARTREWBRAR (HRE [ ANER])EZE2019
F12A3BLEFE(2019FE HNRE ek
ER(THRE  HekERDRE  5EAA
HRINBES ARBAEBER A HFERE AW
HIFE R MR FESE »

RREDBREDTBBRAERIMBRAREELM
AT ETARB DK 8k = +EaEimiRE - 2

NERMERSI MRS - EFNMBAEEN2019
FEMREBEMTESEHEANEE - CETANDE
EARENB B

$%I£?ﬁé$ﬁﬁk”&$ﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁk TEBR

(@QFETRER © b)HEBE  ROQAIBLRER
ARE - HEREABRENEBEEIZERENEL

MMER([BERER]) RURPEARKMNE
(TFEDORER((FERER ) ARLEHE
REBHRERBN2019FENBOR - BUERIE
B BRISERER DAMKBENRRENILEH
REVERRETENEE  PEMERERAT

EET R = ERREE L\ B S
XHKEE - LETE

ISR —HE TR

WHIEE —HETIE

REFIEE —ETRE R

=EIIIAE —HETRE -

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited X 7= = (BB ) #2 R A R A 7) 5 1



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIR - e REamE

The above construction sites account for roughly 73% of the total
revenue of the Group's active construction sites in Hong Kong in
Year 2019. The Group will continue to review the reporting scope in
the future, and extend the report coverage based on the following
criteria:

significance of revenue against the respective financial year;
potential ESG impact;

geographical location; and

associated new legislation requirements, if any.

The board of directors of the Company has reviewed and approved
this ESG report.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the views and opinions of the stakeholders and
recognise the importance of their input to the Group’s sustainable
development.

The Group's key stakeholders include government, shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers or subcontractors and community.
The Group has conducted a survey, discussed or communicated
with stakeholders to understand their views and respond to their
needs and expectations, evaluated and prioritised their inputs to
improve the Group's performance, and finally strived to provide
value to the stakeholders.

Stakeholders
A

Expectations and requirements

HERER

A EEETHEAREER2019FEEET BN EE
BETHIRGETERN73% - AEEREBHER
AMESHE - WERNATREEAREANR

W NN EENERRRE
BERE  HeRERTFE .
I E K

EREFNAPIRE (E) °

ARAEEGCBRMRIARES  HEREA
s -

EREASH
AEEEREHANRREER  RARSAK

SENAHERRMEEMZERN -

$EIE’J££%‘ ABEBRAF

g HERKOBEEATE - REBD EEEA
HITHERAE  WwmEE - WTHRESHEEF
REIEEZEZREE - 7 REIEEREER
EEMRBEZERNEBLAAF  UTHREBN) AER
ANBIEEE -

BR - EP B

Communication and response

BEREDE

Government and regulatory

Operating in compliance with the law

Law-abiding operations

bodies Tax payment in accordance with the Tax payment on time and in full
laws
T & B B e FORKS & SRR E
HORH AR BB
Shareholders Implementation of corporate Optimising internal control and risk
governance and create value management
Information disclosure Releasing operating data in due course
AR BIThREBTAEEE TETEW*BW B

AR
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
Rz A MERER BEREOE
Customers - Fulfilling contracts within the law - Timely completion of the works as set out

High-quality services

S - ROEED
B8 R%
Employees - Career development platform

Remuneration and benefits
Occupational health and safety

(=] EXURTE
e INEER
BEREELRZE
Suppliers or subcontractors + Receiving payment on time
Business ethics and credit standing
HEREZDEE - IEEIEIN R
EEBEREE
Community - Improving the environment of
communities
+  Protecting the nature
= - BAHERE

REB R

in works order

Adopting ISO 9001:2015 certification
REFSER LIERT 8 %ﬁmlﬁ
FE4N1S0O 9001:201533 78

Transparent promotion channel
Competitive remuneration package
Implementation of health and safety
management system
HEAENEERE
E#S e 8
Emﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂw

Timely payment schedule
Fulfilment of obligations under any
contract in accordance with laws
R A R R R 22 B
TEBITEHNED

Participation in charitable activities
Adhere to green operations

DHEEEEY
BT E L E

Annual Report 2019 %%  CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited X 15 (BB ) 1R AR A &)

53



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

g MEARE

R

MATERIALITY MATRIX

In Year 2019, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a
number of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial
to the Group’s business and were of the utmost concerned by
stakeholders. It helps the Group to ensure its business development
meeting the expectations and requirements of stakeholders.
The Group has identified 25 ESG issues covering environmental,
social and operation, and has invited both internal and external
stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG issues through a
scoring tool and interviews. The Group’s management has reviewed
the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then disclosed the
result in this report. The results of materiality assessment prioritised
stakeholder inputs and made the Group focused on the material
aspects for actions, achievements and reporting.

EEMER

R2019FE - AREHZERE HERERE
HETERUFE  ABHHAEEXBRER
NS ARBINEIR - LT hA A S EER
HEHEXBERTABZANPRERFR - AEELC
BMAIH2BERERR  HEREENRE 1

REREE - WHBFAMRINBEDEANB BT D
TAREHK  HZERE HELREARFENE
ZIETHE  AREEEESENZERE
HEeRERFENEEURR - ARARHREANH
BER ERUNENEREHESANERLE
TR - AKEETE - K RER SR
TEEMNE o

The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in the Year 2019:

2019FEEXREENRE - HERE

IMPORTANCE TO STAKEHOLDERS
RS ANESRMNE

AEHERMER

IMPORTANCE TO BUSINESS
HEBOERNE
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Environmental issues
RIBEE

Social issues

HEER

Operation issues

EEEH

1. Greenhouse gas emissions
1. BERBHMK

Energy consumption

RERHFE

3. Water consumption

3. K
4. Waste
4. BEEY)

5. Use of raw materials and packaging
materials

5. FAE RBEMEER

. Green buildings certification
6. FBEERE

8. Climate change

TIREHE

9. Customer engagement in
environmental issues

9. FRYERREFENZHE

EMISSIONS

The Group recognises that environmental protection is one of
the great social concern matters. The Group formulates specific
Environmental Management Plans (EMP) for the projects to

10. Use of chemicals

10. (L2 B9 {5

11. Local community engagement

11, ZHb At [ 22 B

12. Community investment

12. HBRE

13. Occupational health and safety
13 BERERRE

14. Labour standards in supply chain

14 HER AN S TIRAE

15. Training and development
15. Bl R R

16. Employee welfare
16. lE B &7

17. Inclusion and equal opportunities

17. DA R TFEKkE
18. Talent attraction and retention

18. IR a MR 88 A A

23587

FEERRBRRREDHEEINERFTEL
— - AEBRZIEB G ERENRTEETE
BREMERER UTRENSEERTNEE
effectively implement the mitigation measures, with proper ESRREMIEH o BREEE R TEI
monitoring and remedial measures that satisfy relevant
requirements. Apart from regulatory requirements, the Group also
adheres to the BEAM Plus requirements in five of the construction

sites including Mei Tin Road project, Airport project, Shatin project,
Tai Mong Tsai project and Wong Chuk Hang project to further the

efforts in controlling the emissions and resource use.
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19. Economic value generated

19 EANKHEEE

20. Corporate governance
20. REER

21. Anti-corruption
21. REF

22. Supply chain management
22. frEsEE IR

23. Customer satisfaction

3. BEFREE

24. Customer privacy

24, BEFLE

25. Product responsibility
25 EmBfE

ERET(RIEXAEKIER - #I51RE
B - KRFIRE EREMHIEAR )BT ARRT IR
E - RIRESIBERY RERER -

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited Xk 715 (BB ) 1R A R A &

REBETNE
- YHIE

55



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIR - e REamE

The fuel used by machinery and mobile generators during
construction will result in air emissions. Under the Air Pollution
Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation
approved by the Environmental Protection Department is required
for the use of regulated machines and non-road vehicles. To reduce
air emissions, the Group uses ultra-low-sulphur diesel in all diesel-
operated construction plants and set up screens to reduce the
impact of exhaust fumes on the public when necessary.

For dust control, the Group regularly sprays water on unpaved roads
and exposed or loose soils surfaces to suppress dust emissions.
Vehicles would also go through wheel washing facilities before
leaving the sites to remove any dusty materials.

During the Year 2019, air emissions for nitrogen oxides (“NOx"),
sulphur oxides (“SOx") and particulate matter (“PM") were mainly
generated from the combustion sources of motor vehicles of the
Group. The table below shows the key environmental performance

EieTBES - B EBE A ERER R
SELIRBHN - RE(ZERISRER GEBR

%ﬁ%bffé%m)(%#ﬁ&)%ﬁ ) - AR E N IFE
BEMARGRRREZTOIE - BRDRET
e K’élﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ CmEPEERBUEMRBR
Bisem - WM ERRE FEAREEREEY

(===}
NRHFE o

MEEE BT E - AN BT HA A oK 4 B 1 D SE B
%%ﬁ%ﬁ%&%i%%ﬂﬁm LABL B EEBE IR
ERERER TR B SR BB AR i - A BT
0] HEERNYIEL o

R2019%E - AW (TRE(D]) - RELY
(IR&eey]) REFhF ([ BFRF ) R
BERE2RIRNAKBERmHORER - TRIR
019F B AR EZ BB S EERY A

indicators of different types of air emissions emitted by the Group’s ~ $2IRIBLHEMIEZ -

operation during the Year 2019.

Unit Year 2019 Year 2018

Air emissions™ EE R HER™ B 2019 E 20184 &

NOx emissions RELWHEIR kg 6.062 _6

T
SO« emissions TR ke 3 kg 0.39 0.29
T

PM emissions BT HEIR kg 0.45@ -0

=

Note: MIsE -

1. Petrol data for the calculation of NOx emissions, SO« emissions and PM 1. BRETERE MR - A WHE R B F AL
emissions cover all the vehicles consumption for all sites of the Group FHERM RSB REREBREBE T
in Hong Kong. FTE EWHFE -

2. No record of travelling distance for 8 out of 13 private cars is 2. BRGNP BB SRR 2019F I R E
maintained by the Hong Kong Office and PRC Offices in Year 2019. BFLRK B H A em e 1T E SR B RO 8 o F L - I,iﬁ?&
Hence, no figure of NOx emissions and PM emissions of relevant BEBALRENR A HE R R BOE R T R B
private cars are disclosed. e

3. No record of travelling distance for all private cars is maintained by the 3. BEBMEER2018FE W ERBMELKEMNTT

Hong Kong Office in Year 2018. Hence, no figure of NOx emissions and
PM emissions are disclosed.
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Greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions refer to the sum of carbon
dioxide (“CO,") emissions and the CO, equivalent emissions of
methane (“CH,") and nitrous oxide ("N,O"). GHG emissions are
categorised into direct emissions and indirect emissions.

The main sources of direct GHG emissions from operations are the
use of motor vehicles owned or controlled by the Group. The main
sources of indirect GHG emissions from operations are the use of
purchased electricity, paper waste disposed at landfills, electricity
used for processing fresh water by government departments.

The table below shows the key environmental performance
indicators of GHG emissions emitted by the Group’s operation
during the Year 2019.

BEEREB(DREERE DERER —ALiR([ =4
ez ) B E R B ([ F ke ) Matna (|1t
FADN_EHMEEFHENEN - RERE
BRI D RERBER R BRI -

EEMELAMNBERAERBHNEIERRRER
AEBHEREANER - ©EMEENEEER
ERBHNEIERRA/EMINEESD  HERRE
BV REAR M EBFIRE IEIAOKPT R E

TREARWIIFEAEBCEMELE RAERES
AR IRIBEBURIZ -

Unit Year 2019 Year 2018
GHG emissions™ BEREEREY BhI 20196 E 2018%FE
Total GHG emissions BERBBEME kg COze 1,135,692 1,090,511
FR-GHEREE
GHG emissions intensity mERBHNE kg COze 8,736 6,816
(per employee) mE(BREE) TRIA/LREES
Direct emissions due to combustion BB ORI B kg COze 991,446 853,540
of fuels in mobile sources (Scope 1) EAMERER TRZSHEREE
(&i881)
Indirect emissions due to consumption  JHIEINEE HELH kg COze 133,570 234,882
of purchased electricity (Scope 2) MER(EE2) THR-_SfmREE
Other indirect emissions due to paper HEIE (R R TR 22 4 N R kg COze 10,676 3,089
waste disposed at landfills, electricity used  ¥EAKFTAENE TR _-_SLHEE
for processing fresh water (Scope 3) A Y E M R B PR AR
(558E3)

Note 1: Diesel and petrol data cover all the vehicle and machinery
consumption for all sites of the Group in Hong Kong.

BIEET : SO ROTMBIBREAEBETBHMA it

BV TR R EOEFEE o
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The Group takes proactive measures for environmental protection,
and manage waste on site through the proper collection, storage,
transportation, disposal and treatment of wastes. To meet the waste
reduction goals, the Group formulates Waste Management Plans
for projects with clear guidance on the handling of different kinds
of waste. In addition, the Group takes measures to reduce waste
generation at source and systematically sort the wastes, followed
by the recovery of any reusable or recyclable parts such as metal
parts from temporary works, as well as paper packaging from
general refuse. To encourage recycling of waste, recycling bins at
construction sites are also provided.

The Group sends waste to construction waste sorting facilities and
public fill so more construction and demolition (C&D) wastes can be
recovered as far as possible. The Group designates storage locations
for chemical wastes such as used lubricated oil, diesel and residual
paint during site planning. The safety officers would perform regular
inspections to ensure proper storage. The collected chemical wastes
are properly disposed of by a qualified licensed chemical waste
collector.

Moreover, the Group promotes switching off lighting and air-
conditioning one hour during lunchtime and using timer to control

AEERDEGEGEREREREE T HEEE
Y- AAERIEZERSE B BH - RENE
BEEY - BEIREER  A&ERIEALHIE]
BEEIRETE] - IR AEETRENNEEY
RIRAREFE S| o LEobh + AN BBV M TR 28 R EE
MEBEEMBRGSE - W E[R AT B A A
BREWANZ G - flntEE TREIKNEEBE
T UARRE—RUBNEERE - BEEER
B EEZEYD - FAPIINA B T bR B IR B AR o

$EIH#}?*HLLIL SRR R D B S 2 FIR
T BAIREERITERESR - AEBRRE Tt
S EEMBNEBR ”“‘}Elﬂ)izﬁ%%%mfﬁ%
MR FEFHLE - X2 ABSETE PR RERERRMH
FRE SRENCEEYHEERFIELERE
MRERZERE -

ItESh
ANz FEE /N IR

REEE B 2020F BIRIER TR % AR A
FR TR 2R YE B A

on/off for office electrical appliance to reduce energy consumption  ZEERMBIRIE. - LARIRELREE -
starting from 2020.
The table below shows the key environmental performance TR R20I0FERNEF L ERMELEEZYNH
indicators of waste produced by the Group's operation during the — $2IRIBAENFELE -
Year 2019.
Unit Year 2019 Year 2018
Waste BEZEY) Bz 20195 E 20185F &
Total non-hazardous waste produced FIEABEEREEYHLE  tonnes 15,851 5018
M4
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity FRIEXBEREYEE  tonnes 122 31
(per employee) (BHEE) g
Total hazardous waste produced FIEEEEREEYESE  tonnes N/A N/A
IR TiEA NEA
Hazardous waste produced intensity MEEXBEZEREEYZE  tonnes N/A N/A
(per employee) (B%EER) M43 TEA TEA
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The Group recognises that noise emission is one of the great
environmental concern matters. The Group strives to strictly
adhere to relevant laws and regulations in managing the impact of
construction noise on the surrounding environment.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to
ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In Year 2019,
there was no case of material non-compliance with the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control Ordinance,
the Waste Disposal Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance, Dumping
at Sea Ordinance, Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance and
other relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong relating to air
and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste and noise that have a
significant impact on environment. In addition, there was no report
of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Year 2019.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources is one of the
significant aspects to protect environment.

The Group relies on different resources to deliver quality
construction work in operations. That includes electricity for the site
offices and headquarter, diesel for the machineries and generator
sets, petrol for the site vehicles, and water for different processes.
The Group strives to conserve resources within the operations.
Different resource-saving measures are implemented during the
various stages of construction to conserve energy, water, paper and
other office supplies. The measures taken range from improvement
in equipment efficiency, reuse and recycling of materials, to the
behavioural change of the people.
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To conserve resources, the Group continuously implements various
measures including:

converting and retrofitting construction machines to fit into
different construction sites;

reusing timber and concreting formboards in construction
sites where possible and recycling materials like metal parts,

plastics and paper packaging; and

reusing treated construction wastewater for water spraying
and wheel washing when possible.

The Group also implements green office practices at Hong Kong
Office and PRC Offices with examples like:

replacing T5 light tubes with LED lights;

selecting computers with “Energy Star” logo;

encouraging employees to turn off or unplug any electrical
appliances that are not in use, such as light, computer or

chargers; and

encouraging duplex printing in offices.

Energy saving signs remind staff members to turn off
the lights after using in order to promote energy conservation.

SRELETRE IR h e B T IR RAE LAHES BT R o

BREAR  AEBBEEHRZESER 815
WE RN ERERE - NEEETRBRET
i
BERNREE T B A ROBSRIER - 1@
REREBEH BRREEBESMR
54

B REE AR IR AR SEREK - I REK
Kk o

RPTAREENEELTENERE MG
R flan

BT HE B IR ELEDE

BE (R 2 IEFmME

sEEEREFEANER(PIWRA - F
T ER) R RER - &

L Jeee e

vt | S Pt o B

Notice of Printing and photocopying control for
paper saving.

SRR 51 ED S 2 ENE 18 K DA B 40 I 4
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The below table shows the key environmental performance
indicators of the Group's use of resources during the Year 2019.

TRET019FEAEEEREANBRBRIRG
MIEIT

Unit Year 2019 Year 2018
Total use of resources ERFEREE B 20196 & 20184 &
Electricity purchases for consumption INBE T EREE kWh 230,552 438,534
TRE
Electricity consumption intensity BHERERE kWh 1,773 2,741
(per employee) (B2EER) TR
Amount of water consumption FEKE m?3 1,394 5,503
Water consumption intensity HRKZE(BZES m? 10.72 3439
(per employee) 37K
Total packaging material used for finished Bk R PTAR e EE MR kg N/A N/A
products’ B T TEA TEA
Amount of packaging material per unit BAEEBMNBEME kg N/A N/A
produced’ A= T TEH A3 A
Note: MizsE
1. The packaging material used for products or services provided by the 1, REFERBHMNE DSRGHTASEMEZ LD - i)

Group is minimal and hence no relevant data is disclosed.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group understands that its performance in respect of emissions,
waste produced, and use of resources impacts the environment,
the Group endeavours to minimise such impacts, and communicate
the Group's environmental policy, measures, performance, and
achievements to the stakeholders.

The Group is committed to reducing the operation impacts on
environment and natural resources. Series of guidelines are issued
to the workforce (in-house workforce as well as sub-contractors) on
air pollution, water pollution, noise control and waste management
at works.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group recognises the significance of talent management
in achieving long-term business growth. In managing the
talents, the Group upholds the principles of fairness and market
competitiveness, as well as rewards on high performances.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and oppose any form
of discrimination in the hiring process. Employment opportunities
and treatment of employees are not affected by personal attributes
like race, religion, nationality, age or gender. The Group also strictly
prohibits any act of sexual harassment.

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages to staff.
Employees who have completed the probation period are entitled
to medical insurance as well as bonuses and allowances. The Group
has set reasonable working hours, rest periods, and different types
of leave including annual, maternity and examination leave, to
further cater to the personal needs of employees. In addition to
the basic benefits, the Group also provides meals to workers at the
construction sites.

The Group conducts annual remuneration review of employees
based on their performance. As per the policy on promotion, the
Group prioritises internal promotion and would only seek to hire
through open recruitment when internal promotion is not suitable.

All human resources policies are communicated through the
employee handbook and other communication channels such as
bulletin postings or emails, to ensure all staff members are well
aware of their rights and responsibilities.
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The workforce compositions of the Hong Kong Office and PRC
Offices as of 31 December 2019 are stated as follows:

2019128318 » &E
BEHESETAT

WERNPERERD

Year 2019 Year 20180
Employee Statistics EEGTET 20195 E 20185 EW
Total number of staff in head offices BMERE T B 53 54
Categorised by gender: =R S
~ Male — 51 35 40
- Female — Mt 18 14
Categorised by age: BFERE D
- Aged under 30 —30F AT 8 5
- Aged 30-50 —30&508% 34 38
- Aged over 50 — 5058 £ 1 11
Turnover rate oK B 2 42% 19%

Note 1: The figure of Year 2018 is not included the employees of PRC Offices.

During Year 2019, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Employment Ordinance for Hong Kong Office
and construction sites in Hong Kong and Labour Law of the PRC for
PRC Offices relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, as well as other benefits and welfare.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

As the Group is primarily involved in construction activities,
occupational health and safety is one of the top priorities. The Group
has a Safety, Health and Environment policy in place to ensure good
health and safety of employees.

The Group has designated person in charge of safety issues to
better manage health and safety issues. Safety officers will reqularly
review and check for updates of the relevant laws, and make regular
inspections to ensure safety. Besides regular inspections, the Group
also provides monthly industry safety training and occupational
risk assessments to increase employees” awareness and reduce the
chance of work accidents.
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Depending on the nature of their work, workers are required to wear
appropriate personal protective equipment. No workers are allowed
to operate machineries or perform high-risk tasks such as working in
confined space or working with electrical appliances without strict
supervision and approval of supervisors.

The Group has informed workers about planned escape routes
in case of emergencies and have provided proper signage and
instruction for caution areas in the workplace. When employees
identify potential health and safety risks, they are required to
escalate the issues to management for follow-up actions.

During the Year 2019, there was one case of work-related injuries
at the construction site in Hong Kong. In response to the accident,
the Group has taken appropriate remedial action including training
on construction safety for the workers and putting up more safety
posters and instructions at the different areas of the site.

TABEABTEREFESENEARERE
ERBEEAEBBRBEBERMENERLT - TA
TRREEMBCETRRRERE - HINZR=H
TEslBRIFESRR °

AEEDEMTAZERSBRR O ER AR
R YR TESMRAAERIEEFRMNEERT
KIET - EEREHBABERFERLZ2ABRE - &
LFRAMEEABR LREMEIRA - UIERE -

R2019FER » EEMNBETHERE-—RTE
E - AREERBUEENMRITBREEES
BRERTARHEERZEZEI - INTHTRER
HRMEZLEEHRIIET °

Year 2019 Year 2018
Work-related injuries I 20195 E 2018F &
Cases of work-related fatalities ETEREMmILT B ER 0 0
Cases of work-related injuries ETEREEMZ B ER 1 3
Lost-days due to work-related injuries ETEEAIIEAH 57 346

The Group adheres to relevant health and safety laws, such
as Factories and Industrial Undertakings (Safety Officers and
Safety Supervisors) Regulations, Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Law of the PRC on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases and Work-Related Injury Insurance
Regulation of the PRC. During the Year 2019, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

As employee’s capabilities can drive the long-term development
of the Group, the Group seeks to enhance their skills by providing
them with various training opportunities. The Group has a Training
Policy that is focused on imparting training and qualifications to the
management, aiming at:

corporate governance & ESG update;

commercial fraud investigation; and

ISO training.
Employee training could be in forms of in-class learning, E-learning,
seminars and coaching. Staff members taking part in external
training are also encouraged to share their learning with other
colleagues. When necessary, employees taking part in professional
examinations are granted paid leaves as well. Under the current
policy, the major training topics include:

regulatory compliance (e.g. relevant Listing Rules, Corporate

Governance Code, the Securities and Futures Ordinance and

other applicable rules and regulations in Hong Kong and

overseas);

anti-money laundering and counter terrorist financing;

environmental, health and safety regulations; and

relevant rules/regulations in the construction industry.

BRI
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LABOUR STANDARDS

Use of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited by the
Group. The Group adheres to all relevant regulations and laws to
safeguard the rights of the employees and does not tolerate labour
exploitation.

All relevant laws, such as the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
Labour Law of the PRC, the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour of the PRC and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to preventing child or forced labour are regularly reviewed
to ensure the compliance of the labour practices by the Hong Kong
Office, PRC Offices and construction sites in Hong Kong. During
the recruitment process, the Group verifies the applicant’s age and
the practice is extended to the supplier selection process as well.
Any non-compliance will be escalated to the director for further
investigation and handling.

During the Year 2019, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding child labour and
forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In the construction projects, the Group works with different
subcontractors and suppliers. Therefore, supply chain management
is important to the Group's provision of quality construction work.

The Group has in place well-established procedures to select
and monitor subcontractors and supplier partners. The Group's
procedures in selecting suppliers for projects are well-documented
in the Selection of Subcontractor and Supplier policy, which requires
careful assessment of suppliers based on criteria such as reputation,
capability, work quality, experience and other relevant factors.

During the projects, the Group continues to monitor supplier
performance and adopt adequate control measures to ensure that
the purchased products conform to project specifications. Beyond
quality and legal compliance, the Group expects the subcontractors
to adopt fair labour practices and demonstrate environmental
stewardship. The requirements for suppliers are communicated in
the Supplier Code of Conduct, and the Group evaluates supplier
performance through site visits to confirm their compliance
with the code. Only those who pass the evaluation would stay
on the Approved Subcontractors/Suppliers List, and severe non-
compliance may ultimately lead to cease of collaboration.
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The Group also has a separate Procedure for Selection of External
Professional Parties, which provides guidance on appointing
external professional advisers based on factors such as quality and
independence.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

It is the goal to improve the quality of life in society and build for a
better environment. To achieve this goal, the Group strives to deliver
high-quality, safe construction services to the clients.

To ensure the delivery of high-quality services consistently, the
Group has established and implemented an ISO 9001:2015 certified
quality management system. It provides reliable assurance of the
contracted services and works and fulfils the following criteria:

meeting customer expectations and relevant regulatory
requirements;

satisfying customers through continuous improvement of
products and services; and

fulfilling contract requirements with quality management as
the top priority.

During the Year 2019, the Group is not aware of any non-compliance
with Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, Trade
Description Ordinance of Hong Kong and the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and method of redress.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

Employees at all levels are required to conduct themselves with
integrity, impartiality and honesty. The Group strictly adheres to
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. In addition,
the Group has in place an Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy,
which provides a clear definition of bribery and corruption acts,
and documents the internal control and escalation procedures in
handling suspected cases.

As a supplement to the Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy, the
Staff Discipline Policy provides guidance on employees’ behaviour,
including the acceptance of gifts and conflict of interests, to further
enhance the awareness of employees. The above policies ensure
that employees across levels adhere to anti-bribery laws and
follow the best practices in combating corruption in all business
operations of the Group.

The Group also seeks to promote awareness of the employees
through anti-corruption training. During the Year 2019, the
colleagues attended anti-money laundering training, which
covered topics including updates on regulatory changes, banking
requirements and the detection of money laundering.

The staff members are encouraged to report suspected corruption
cases. The Group has a Whistle-blowing Policy that protects
the whistle-blower from possible retaliation while discouraging
malicious allegations made in bad faith through established
mechanisms. Under the policy, the whistle-blower’s identity is
protected and retaliation is not permissible against him or her. The
Group will investigate the reported incidents thoroughly and will
take disciplinary actions against any misconduct. In addition, the
Group shall report suspected corruption cases to the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong.
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The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating
to anti-corruption during the course of operation. In the Year
2019, there was no case of any material non-compliance with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have
a significant impact. In addition, there was no report of significant
fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the Year 2019.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group sincerely believes that growth is closely tied to the
surrounding community and the environment. In order to raise
the awareness of climate change and energy saving, the Group
participated in “Earth Hour 2020” held by World Wide Fund for
Nature Hong Kong (WWF), by switching off non-essential lights and
electronic appliances, as the step against climate change and for
energy saving.

FEEDBACK

The Group will continue to adopt measures for the benefit of ESG
in its operations. Stakeholders’ feedback is valuable and can help
the Group to improve its operational, environmental, social and
governance policies and procedures. Please feel free to share your
feedback on the performance via any of the following channels:

Address:  Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email: info@ctvision994.com
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CT VISION (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS WIN WIN WAY CONSTRUCTION
HOLDINGS LTD.)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CT Vision
(International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 199,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HREEER

BARENEER

MRREAFHEERERMANERAE  wHAY
BB AHAEANGEEMBEREABZ/EENS
B ZEFHCERMENBOSREVBHRERL
HAERKEE MEMIERZEETRERR
HER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMRETFRBNAEEBRRETER

Revenue from construction contracts for foundation works and ancillary
services and general building works

G #h A2 T 2R ADE RS LA K

—MREET IR EEE Nz

The Group recognised revenue from the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services and general building works in Hong
Kong totaling HK$207,291,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019.

BE019F12A3HLESE - EEEEREBRMMETR
RECERIG AR —RBETIRMR S $£207,291,000/8 7T

We identified the revenue recognition from these construction
contracts as a key audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and management’s judgment is involved in measuring the stage
of completion of construction works completed during the
year. Construction works may take several years to complete.
Management estimates the revenue by assessing the progress
of construction works. As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management'’s estimate of revenue and
the completion status of construction works requires significant
judgment and has a significant impact on the amount and timing of
revenue recognised.
BARZEFREANNKRAERBNSERETFE  BEY
mEBREMEMEPARERMEBEKN - MitERFRTKE
BRETENTREASREEBNHE - RETIERTHFEA
EYE BEEGNMREIREEEMGKS - MNES %
WRWMT4TEE  BEEBH KRG MEELEN T IR
NBEELERHE - THERAREZNEBLRFRAFEAY
ZL o
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Our procedures in relation to the recognition of
revenue from construction contracts included:

HEEREER RS AENEF B

Obtaining an understanding of the key
controls over the revenue recognition and
determination of the completion status of
construction works;
THREBBATERLEEREETRTAIR
By 2R

Obtaining an understanding from the project
managers of the status of completion of the
construction projects during the year on a

sample basis;
M8 B AR T AR TIRTE B RN F AR K
B

Conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to
observe the progress of individual contracts;
and

HMEAETEHER  UEBERENEONE
A3

Assessing the management’s estimate of
revenue from construction works, by checking
to the Group’s latest internal construction
progress reports on a sample basis to verify
the value of construction works completed
and comparing these to the latest certificates
issued by the surveyors appointed by the
customers.

BEmERE ERESTAEELERR
EURERKEETRENBERSHERE
FIEE R 2R3 DS ERSELER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HREEEE

BERETEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMRETRBNAEEBERETER

Recoverability of amounts due from Customer A

JENE P AGKIR 1) 7] e 1 72 &

We identified the recoverability of amounts due from Customer A to
be a key audit matter as the aggregate amount Customer A owes to
the Group is significant and the involvement of subjective judgment
and management estimates in evaluating the expected credit loss
("ECL").

AP YR P AR AT @AE E B RRRR R R - REA
BEFPAER BEEMNReBESEAERTHBRBEESRE(R
HEEER RS REBAERERE A

As disclosed in note 27(b), the Group has assessed the ECL on the
trade receivables due from Customer A of HK$169,598,000, contract
assets in relation to a contract with Customer A of HK$18,299,000
and other receivables related to the Group's payment on behalf of
Customer A for certain expenses of HK$5,448,000. Customer A is the
Group's customer in relation to a construction project (the “Project”).
Most of the trade receivables due from Customer A have been
overdue for over 260 days. During the year ended 31 December
2019, management has been in active discussion with Customer A
to recover the debt due to the Group.

MANMIFE27(0) FriRER - ESEEDHEREPANE YK
18169,598,000/8 7T ~ BT AR LB A #)E 18,299,000/ 7T
kEH BESEEREPAZME T 544800074 T8 H b fE UL
FIEFTHTEAEEEE - ERENTPEFAHE —IEEEIER
([ZIEE 1B - BIKEFPARNKE S B 5 EYGIAEC BHIEMA
260K - REE2019F12A3BLEFE  ERE—HRBGHEP
AT AR B e BERERER ©

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
recognised impairment loss under ECL of HK$83,447,000 on the
amounts due from Customer A.

HZE2019F12AALEFE - ESEERBERHAGCEESEME
W B AR ZUIE TE 283,447,000/ T KR BB 18 °

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability
of amounts due from Customer A included the
following:

HAPIBL AT E R U R P AFIRE R AT UK B2 E P TTEY
FEARFEFENATEE

Understanding management’s assessment
of the recoverability of the trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables;
THREBEHNESRIKFIE - GNEERE
th JE W R IR AT U [BIAR 2 A R A

Interviewing a director of Customer A to
understand its ability to repay the amounts;
HEPAMNERETER A THEBEER
ERIBEN

Conducting site visit of the Project to
understand the Project status from site
personnel;
HZABETEMRE  URERSAE THE
BB

Challenging management’s basis and
judgment in determining the impairment
loss under ECL and the loss rate applied
with reference to the estimated funding
from Customer A's shareholders and the
forward-looking information applied by the
management of the Group; and
2EREREFPANBRRZEES R &
EEREMEANATEEES  GREERE
BEEREEEERARANEEXETH
BEEBERNEERAE &

Evaluating the disclosures regarding
the impairment assessment of the trade
receivables, contract assets and other
receivables relating to Customer A in notes
4 and 27(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

AHER AR A SRR T4k 27(b) B R P
ABVE ZIEWGRIA - & K& 2 N H e YR
B REEREER
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on these statements on 29 March
2019.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TNz B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN IZ BN R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TNz B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 July 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ireiBm L HMEE R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

2019 2018
20195 20184F
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
Bt aE FET FHET
Revenue & 5 246,880 610,761
Cost of sales Fizk=J W (222,891) (531,164)
Gross profit EX 23,989 79,597
Other income HE YA 5,712 741
Other gains and losses H s Kk sE (397) 1,548
Impairment losses under expected FEAEEBEEATH
credit loss model, net of reversal EEE  RREE (88,297) (1,193)
General and administrative expenses ~ —f# R1TEFE X (40,572) (49,372)
Selling expenses HERX (4,998) (5,631)
Finance costs EUE AW 8 (4,805) (3,821)
(Loss) profit before tax FRELAT (B8 =R 9 (109,368) 21,869
Income tax credit (expense) FrisfiEe (Fx) 10 1,230 (4,475)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(E5R) R (108,138) 17,394
Other comprehensive expense for FEHMEAEBX
the year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently H & A] B3 5B 71875
to profit or loss: BIIEA -
Exchange differences arising on BME B INETGFTE £
translation of foreign operations HIPE 5 =58 (228) (1,084)
Total comprehensive (expense) FE2ZHE(BAX)
income for the year W zs 4858 (108,366) 16,310
(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents) &R (E18) 2R GBAl) 13
Basic BN (17.67) 3.07
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre IR

At 31 December 2019 72019912 A31H

2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
P aE F#&xT FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B KRR 14 2,413 8,122
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 15,857 -
Other non-current assets HinIEme & E 16 24,409 -
Goodwill =S 17 21,670 21,670
Non-current deposits RIS 19 1,970 545
Deferred tax assets ELETRIBE E 10 2,044 313
68,363 30,650
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N HE At 18 19 169,027 145,127
Contract assets EHEE 20(a) 239,009 356,568
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITFR 21 40,060 50,005
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTTES 21 1,283 2,515
449,379 554,215
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMERFRIE 22 137,701 119,955
Contract liabilities AHatE 20(b) 17,000 5,238
Amount due to immediate holding JEAT B IR FIE
company 32(b) 17,847 -
Lease liabilities/obligations under HEAE RMEHRE
finance leases HHE 23 7,647 3,005
Bank loans RITER 24 68,629 67,618
Bank overdrafts RITIEX 24 17,023 13,272
Tax payable FEETIA 8,227 7,448
274,074 216,536
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sra AR

At 31 December 2019 20195128318

2019 2018

20194 20184

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

P 5 FET FET

Net current assets REBEEFE 175,305 337,679

Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 243,668 368,329
Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Loans from directors REEENERK 32(b) = 20,888

Lease liabilities/obligations under HeEaE mERs

finance leases HEHE 23 9,439 4,555

9,439 25,443

Net assets BESE 234,229 342,886
Capital and reserves EXR#EE

Share capital A% A 26 6,120 6,120

Reserves i 26 228,109 336,766

Total equity AR 234,229 342,886

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 199 were  £77E 1998 MG & M KMEC HEE 2R 20204

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 13 7 13 #/ERE#ETE  WHUTEERES
July 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: E=g

Ho Chun Kit Gregory Guo Jianfeng

e ol
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

== N\ 7 “‘z
/ N /nl:l/n
\‘/T\ 1; %%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARHEEAEL
Share Share Other  Exchange  Retained

capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total

kA RORE HitEE  EIRE  REEF @t

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TAER FAT FAT TAT

At 1 January 2018 R2018E1A1H 5120 85939 41,656 (10) 11,127 243,832

Profit for the year EEEN - - - - 17,394 17,3%

Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEMEER X - - - (1,084) - (1,084)

Total comprehensive income for the year  FE2HIRFBE - - - (1,084) 17,394 16,310

Deemed contribution from shareholders for & FAEB K E B EH

interest-free loans granted to the Group ~ RIERE T & - - 1444 - - 1444
Placing of new shares, net of issuing BREHRS - IBRBEAEE

expenses (note 26(a)) (B 26(a) 1,000 80,300 - - - 81,300

At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31H 6,120 166,239 43,100 (1,094) 128,521 342,886
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 & X [E B & BB KRS58

(note 2) F16MAF 2 (HT2) - - - - (291) (291)

At 1 January 2019 (restated) R2019F1 A1R (K EF) 6,120 166,239 43,100 (1,094) 128,230 342,595

Loss for the year FEER - - - - (108,138)  (108,138)

Other comprehensive expense for the year FEE M2 ERX = - - (228) - (228)

Total comprehensive expense for the year  FE2EFH T L5 - - - (228)  (108,138)  (108,366)

At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R 6,120 166,239 43,100 (1,322) 20,092 234,229
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

rEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
(Loss) profit before tax M AT (E518) %R (109,368) 21,869
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs B F& AR 4,805 3,821
Interest income 2 HﬂU\ (637) (150)
Change in fair value of financial asset ~ RIBZRERAFEERENESHE
at fair value through profit or loss ENATEEZY (360) -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREREITE
equipment 1,153 3,780
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAREENE 6,632 -
Impairment losses of FREEERERE
right-of-use assets 1,123 -
Impairment losses under expected TEEEEEEEX THRERE
credit loss model, net of reversal 5 k#ED 88,297 1,193
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREEN KRG
plant and equipment (500) (1,447)
Operating cash flows before ATEEECEH I RERERNE
movements in working capital (8,855) 29,072
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 K E th JE U 2R IE 1 1 (89,632) (45,321)
Increase in prepayment for a life NSRS A FEA FIEIE AN
insurance contract (1,393) -
Decrease (increase) in contract assets & &IEER D (3EN) 95,251 (62,047)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other 8 5 & E th i~ ZRIE 18 Hn (4> )
payables 17,746 (13,599)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities & £ & &3 1R L) 11,762 (6,877)
Cash generated from (used in) KEEBEATRA)RE
operations 24,879 (98,772)
Income taxes refunded (paid) RO(ER)ETER 278 (843)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RESER TS (A B4 S
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 25,157 (99,615)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Payments for rental deposits MERSNR (1,678) -
Payment for the investment component A SR & 47015 & ZB1D
of a life insurance contract INEN (22,656) -
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE  BEREE
equipment (700) 418)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 IR 1717 7k 2 ER 50,005 36,315
Placement of pledged bank deposits D IEMERITERIFR (40,060) (50,005)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEMRE
plant and equipment P15 3878 500 1,585
Interest received BRI A 637 150
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 =N - (23,740)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETHFMARSFH
ACTIVITIES (13,952) (36,113)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Advances from immediate holding BEERAGRR
company 17,847 -
Repayment of lease liabilities/ EREERE MEREAE
obligations under finance leases (9,177) (6,853)
Proceeds from new bank loans HIRITEFRFTSRE 147,826 60,618
Repayments of bank loans BEPBETER (146,815) (43,996)
Interest paid on bank loans and BMIRITERRBEL A
overdrafts (3,906) (3,373)
Interest paid on lease liabilities/obligation BfNTHE&E BEHEE
under finance leases HIER] B (899) (448)
(Repayment to) advance from directors (i ) KB EEREN (20,888) 22,332
Net proceeds from placing of Bl EF M TS T8 F58
new shares = 81,300
Repayment of loans from BERBHNENR
related parties = (4,345)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BEEE (PRGNS HE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (16,012) 105,235
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RekReEBYWRL FE
EQUIVALENTS (4,807) (30,493)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MTATBZRE KRS EEY
AT 1 JANUARY (10,757) 19,736
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes YMNE[E R & &) 2 (176) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RI2ANAZRE MR FEY
AT 31 DECEMBER (15,740) (10,757)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RI2ANAZRENREEFEY -
AT 31 DECEMBER, REPRESENTED BY A RPIBIER T
BANK BALANCES AND CASH RITHR IR S 1,283 2,515
BANK OVERDRAFTS RITEX (17,023) (13,272)
(15,740) (10,757)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

GENERAL

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company was Condover Assets Limited, a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). During the
year ended 31 December 2019, CT Vision Investment Limited,
a private company incorporated in the BVI, became the
immediate holding company and ultimate holding company
of the Company. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 14 June 2019, the
name of the Company has been changed from “Win Win Way
Construction Holdings Ltd.” (B s/ AR A F)) to "CT
Vision (International) Holdings Limited” (R Z= 15 (BB ) ¥
%7 FR 2 B]) with effect from 14 June 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 18.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars (“HKS"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A BTSRRI ET

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(FRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial position and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
("HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4
"Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STA

NDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
Definition of a lease (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as
an alternative of impairment review; and

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
As a lessee

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets and the
lease liabilities at the date of initial application is the
carrying amount of the lease assets and lease liabilities
immediately before that date measured applying HKAS
17. For those leases, the Group accounted for the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities by applying HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application.

For leases previously classified as operating leases,
the Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019. As at 1 January 2019, the
Group recognised additional lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets as at the date of initial application, at
the carrying amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied
since commencement dates, but discounted using
the incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

R BB BREERR
AR EEHHEREER ]2

RAFERH LRI ERBMBIREER
RASFT A (48

2.1

Annual Report 2019 Fif

BEBRBHEERIE 165 [HE /(&)
ERAEA

REFMDEARELRENHEMS -
FRHEEEMHEAENREAERA
HrREEARNEEZABITRANE
BerrEAE IR ENHEEER
HERGBEZFEEE - HZEHEM
T ASBEEENERBHREERS
BB ELERE 6RYREAES
ERHEAE-

REFDEARKEHENHEMS -
REBECEYPERESM B RELE
BlZE 1657 + RE ?/i“EAé/AF‘ﬁHEIHﬂ
(20195F1H1H)FER ° 7R2019F 1 A

A $’EEIBAE/Aﬁ%EHﬁ?EﬁEﬁ@
BRBEHNHEBERERBREE - M
mME AR ASRED EAS B SR
HERFE 165 - EEBERAETENE
A ERIZE165% 5 C8(b) () B 1B 7 B
HEEE amﬁia;%?ﬁr@éiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
[ o NERFERB BN ERZENE
MIRBEFER  BEBERTTE
Bl o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STA

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

NDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

R BB BREERK
BAIAR(EEHHEREER ] #)

RAFERH LRI ERMBREER

RASFT A (78

2.1

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has
applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
lessee’s incremental borrowing rates applied by

relevant group entities range from 4.00% to 6.43% per

BBRHBHEERIE 165 [HE /()
TERANA (B)

RERLA D EACEHENTEED
HEBER - Nﬁlafﬁﬁﬂéuﬁ
FBREBEEEEERENIEEE KA
X o HBEEEERER ZABALEE
BREF RN T4.00%ZE6.43% °

annum.
At 1 January 2019
R20195F1H1H
HKS$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments as at R2018F 12 A31HK
31 December 2018 KA TR E AR 4,793
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant HEIF20185F12H31H
incremental borrowing rate relating to EEEZJEI’J%«ME&
operating leases recognised at EREMEREE
31 December 2018 BRAEURHAEAE 4,578
Add: Obligations under finance leases hn o 7R2018%12 A31 HEER K
recognised as at 31 December 2018 (note) BEREAE (W) 7,560
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1EMEEEE 12,138
Analysed as PaR)iv=
Current Ep 5,953
Non-current IERED 6,185
12,138
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use
as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following:

R BB BREERR
AR EEHHEREER ]2

RAFEBH LRI ERMBIREER
RAEFT AR (48)

2.1

BEBHBHEERIE 165 [HE (/)
TERANA (B)

tEE ARG EREEER2019F1 A
THOREEREATRIE

Right-of-use assets

EREEE
HKS$'000
FHET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating MR EREABIBREERE 165
leases recognised upon application of BIERNCEHETRAY
HKFRS 16 EREEE 4,287
Assets previously under finance leases ERINBEMEERTHWEE
included in property, plant and (FA2018%F 12 A31HET A
equipment as at 31 December 2018 (note) YIE -~ BB KR (FsE) 5,199
9,486
By class: LR
Properties L/ES 4,287
Solar power system NG 5,010
Motor vehicles B 189
9,486

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits paid were considered as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applied under trade
and other receivables. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right-of-use assets and were
adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition.
The discounting effect has no material impact on the
consolidation financial statements of the Group for the
current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STA

NDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applied. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right-of-use
assets.

There is no material impact of applying HKFRS 16 as
a lessor on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 and 31 December
2019 and its consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
As a lessor (continued)
The following summarises the impact of transition to

HKFRS 16 for the Group as a lessee on retained profits at
1 January 2019.

R BB BREERR
AR EEHHEREER ]2

RAFERH LRI ERBMBIREER
RASFT A (48

2.1 BEUMBHREERE 1655 [HE /()
TERHENA (B)

AT AN EEESEABANEBRES
BB REERFE 165 E N 2019F1 A
1EIE’M%EE|¢J'J -

Impact of
adopting
HKFRS 16 at

1 January 2019
201951 81H

BRNE B

WEERIE165%

W

HK$'000

FAT

Retained profits RE &R

Difference between right-of-use assets and REXERAE BT BmEERE 165
lease liabilities at the date of HEAF AL ENEHEBENERE

initial application of HKFRS 16 (291)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts

R BB BREERK
BAIAR(EEHHEREER ] #)

RAFERHEMNHTE BB REER

RASFT A (78
2.1 BEBUBHEEERE 1655 [HEIE)

BER2019F1 A1 8 258 AR R

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial NEZANLSBEO/ELE TV AR - fiEm
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not B RS ESZENIER o
affected by the changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
KRR 20195
20185 1R1ERE
128318 BRUB®RE
2Rz ERIE 165
SREE A ZEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment (note) ME - B MR (M) 8,122 (5,199) 2,923
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 9,486 9,486
Current liabilities RBAE
Lease liabilities HERE - 5953 5953
Obligations under finance leases (note) AR EAE () 3,005 (3,005) -
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE - 6,185 6,185
Obligations under finance leases (note) BERERE(NE) 4,555 (4,555) -
Capital and reserves BEARRRE
Retained profits TRE A 128,521 (291) 128,230
Note: In relation to assets previously under finance leases, iz MERREREETNTHEEM

the Group recategorised the carrying amounts of the
relevant assets which were still under finance lease as
at 1 January 2019 amounting to HK$5,199,000 as right-
of-use assets. In addition, the Group reclassified the
obligations under finance leases of HK$3,005,000 and
HK$4,555,000 to lease liabilities as current and non-
current liabilities respectively at 1 January 2019.

Annual Report 2019 4§

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited Xk 715 (BB ) 1R A R A &

= REBEBR2019F1 A1 B
MEAMAEBE THEBEENEEE
5,199,000 TEH DB AFHEER
EE o A AREER2019F1 A1H
13,005,000 7T 2 Bl & FH & FE &
4,555,000 T2 HE B ED R EH
DEARRIETBALRE -

91



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

92

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended
31 December 2019, movements in working capital
have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as
disclosed above.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material*

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment-
Proceeds before Intended Use®
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contract-Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020°
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, “the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards”, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 "Definition of a Business"

The amendments:

add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election on
whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired
set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;
and

narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers
and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce
costs.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to all
business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2020. The optional
concentration test and the amended definition of a business
are not expected to have a significant impact to the Group.

R BB BREERK
BAIAR(EEHHEREER ] #)

CEMEERERZHE]EBYBREER
RASFT A (78

B L] BB M B WS E R RISET 4] -
KASET A S S S IEZR 2 R 20185 A8 o
HEeBE(EAVBREENTFTHEHBESIE
EMRAAEET ) 18R 2020F 1 A1 H 2 18
Rz FEHARERR -

BB BHEERFE3H (IETF ) #B2
%%/

MAEZEMEF R - Bk
BN HEIPHREERTEBREBH
Al o AIRERNRXHEEERERTE
REZEENES A
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EE R
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
the information;

replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to "users” which was considered too
broad when deciding what information to disclose in
the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

R BB BREERR
AR EEHHEREER ]2

CEMEERERZHETEBYBREER
RASFT A (48
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “New
Framework”)

reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses
that arise from a change in the current value of an asset
or liability; and

discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial statements.

R BB BREERK
BAIAR(EEHHEREER ] #)

CEMEERERZHE]EBYBREER
RASFT A (78

1R T BRI R E RIS AE R (15T 7)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards (continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “New
Framework”) (continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to
the previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for the Group's annual period beginning on
1 January 2020. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely
on the New Framework on its effective date in determining
the accounting policies especially for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
above, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

R BB BREERR
AR EEHHEREER ]2

CEMEERERZHETEBYBREER
RASFT A (48

BAEBYBHEERBZAERL(EETE)
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2018F BB NER([FTHERR)) ()
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS
17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

included within Level
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combination (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Tax” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for which
the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, including
scope changes made to original contracts, but have not yet
determined the corresponding change in price, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b)
the most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will
be entitled.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
(continued)

Variable consideration (continued)

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Contract modification

Any change in scope or price (or both) is consider as a
contract modification. A contract modification may exist
even through the Group and the relevant customer have not
finalised about the scope or price (or both) of the modification
or both parties have approved a change in the scope but
have not yet determined the corresponding change in price.
The Group accounts for a contract modification as a separate
contract if the change in scope constitutes a separate
and distinct performance obligation and the additional
consideration reflects the stand-alone selling price. For
a change in scope that is not distinct and forms part of a
single performance obligation that is partially satisfied at the
date of the contract modification, the effect of the contract
modification is accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” ("HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1 1 0 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessor (continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
not with reference to the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group'’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of “Exchange reserve”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1 1 2 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,

to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use

assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group

determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the

right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12

“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction

whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
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for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or

Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1 1 6 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All reqular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL")), are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1 1 8 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOC! or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1 20 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables and bank balances and pledged
bank balances) and contract assets, which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/T\

BB RARM T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

3.

BEAEHBE®)

$MIAE)

THEE(E)

EREEREHWEERE(E)

(i)

EERREZ EFH
F%ﬁhgﬂ ERIEZ F I $
,,,,, Lﬂ%'$ﬁlﬁf$ﬂl

mﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁ‘iﬂ
TARMFHEABHRHBERZONE
[ o (ELUEFHER - AEBEEES
BRAEBBENEERELESR B
L& N BATEE T BERARHEIE
HENRESHATIE LAY o

RER - FEEERRE T AER N
BEEE TR

ERTENB(MB)HAEER
AHRR BRI E S

EERBINITIZIEERER
& PImEESE - BBANIGE
B2 #i= By (E AR A0 ¢

TEESEREBARITEAGERR
EREE DRI TR ERS - B1%
A E AR B IR A S TROR T A
%

BEEARERENER TR
BB

BYEHABRTEEHR R TR
NARETRENEHBALE - &F

SRR ER LB EAT
FIgH -

Annual Report 2019 %3¢  CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited F7 X 7215 (BB ) #2 iR A IR A & 1 21



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. BAREHHE #)

Financial instruments (continued) SRMIAA)

Financial assets (continued) EHEEE)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued) EHEERSHEEREE)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued) 0) SERREE FH(E)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default (i)

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. BAREHHE #)

Financial instruments (continued) SRMIAA)

Financial assets (continued) 2EIEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued) THEEREEERE(E)
(iv)  Write-off policy (iv)  HEEERR

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/T\

BB RARM T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

Past-due status; and
Nature and size of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1 26 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to immediate holding company, loans from
directors, bank loans and bank overdrafts) are subsequently
measured at amortised costs, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

A TRERR 2 EERIR

EREAMEI Mz A RE S BRE - A
NAEEA B AIREREMIIRMEHZ
EERABZREEMFELHE G ER
R o A FEFT RAERBERR IR BB E LR M
R RER 2 A RMIEL - BRRERK
SERNZFMEET -

AEBFEEM RBBERRIELR
A o BRHART BT MAZEEH - AR
(ERTRARHER] & HIMER - WX IR 5T AET
ZIERTREE M MARERE - RAIEEERTR
ER]E MR AR R MR -

A T RERRE ZERRIR

T RFRBRZEBERRENBERRME
ATRERRZEMEERR - ZETHEE
REAEER N A RFELEERAR
FREEHREARHEEXRR

Annual Report 2019 %3¢  CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited F7 X 7215 (BB ) #2 iR A IR A & 1 27



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1 28 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Revenue from construction contracts for foundation works
and ancillary services and general building works

The management measures the value of completed
construction works for foundation works and ancillary
services and general building works based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurement of the stage of completion of construction
work transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining construction works promised to be completed
under the construction contract. Construction works may
take several years to complete. Management estimates the
revenue by assessing the progress of construction works. The
management’s estimate of revenue and the completion status
of construction works requires significant judgment and has
a significant impact on the amount and timing of revenue
recognised. The Group has qualified surveyors to periodically
measure the stage of completion of the construction works
completed for each construction projects and issue the
internal construction progress reports. The construction
works performed by the Group would also be certified by the
surveyors appointed by the customers periodically according
to the construction contracts. The Group regularly reviews
and revises the estimation of contract revenue prepared
for each construction contract as the contract progresses
based on the internal construction progress reports and
the certification issued by the surveyors appointed by the
customers.

The Group recognised revenue from the provision of
foundation works and ancillary services and general building
works totaling HK$207,291,000 (2018: HK$544,145,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets relating to Customer A
as well as other customers are assessed for ECL individually.
The management estimates the ECL based on, including
but not limited to, historical credit loss experience, specific
financial condition of the debtors, repayment behaviors and
forward-looking information.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances
specific to each debtor and general economic conditions. The
information about the ECLs and the Group's trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in note 27.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the relevant business units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the recoverable amount
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$21,670,000 (2018: HK$21,670,000).
No impairment is recognised in both years. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(a)

1 30 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Revenue

Revenue represents revenue from construction
contracts, sales of piles and rental income from lease of

Wk aHBER

WHEFAKRBREESLD  HEBE
REEARGREBUHMFESKRAZ

solar power system during the year. W
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Types of goods and services EmRREESE
Recognised over time: BERS I HERR
Revenue from construction contracts 3K B 254 489l
- foundation works —HETER
and ancillary services Bl E AR 75 143,548 102,790
- general building works ——MREBETR 63,743 441,355
- renewable energy systems — P B AERRE B 36,086 -
Sales of piles — recognised at a point ~ $H&EEE —
in time RE—ERETER 2,857 65,834
Revenue from contracts with RERFPEHIWE
customers 246,234 609,979
Rental income M BA 646 782
246,880 610,761
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

Kk BER 2)

(@) Revenue (continued) (a) WHF(&

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially

PEEEFEHNZHB TRNEFZX
ZE

R2019F K 2018F 12 A3 1B EL =%
TEAEAE CREMSEB D REK) 2

satisfied) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the R ENMIBHBRWEF RS T

expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:
2019 2019%F

Foundation works

and ancillary

services

and general

building works

WETRER

BERBE AR

—REETR

HK$’000

FET

—FRQ
—FALETZRRE

Within one year 197,119
More than one year but not

more than two years 48,771

245,890

s - RERFARMIIAR ([ZA
BDEMZEE  WZBEBRTEL
& 1£260,362,0008 T R FT ALK ©

In addition, the project related to Customer A (the

"Project”), with a remaining performance obligation of

HK$260,362,000, has not been included in the above as
the Project is currently suspended.

2018 20184

Foundation works

and ancillary

services

and general

building works

HETER

Ao E AR 75 LA K

—ARIEETE

HK$'000

FHET

—&FR
—FA BT ZRRE

Within one year 299,888
More than one year but not

more than two years 86,135

386,023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A BTSRRI ET

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

5.

1 32 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
(continued)

As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed for
those contracts with its customers are for periods of one
year or less.

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Revenue from construction contracts of foundation works
and ancillary services and general building works

Revenue from construction contracts of foundation
works and ancillary services and general building
works is recognised over time based on the stage of
completion of the contract using the output method as
the Group’s contract work enhances an asset that the
external customers controls as the asset is enhanced.
The contracts signed with customers may take several
years and are fixed-price contracts, except for any
variable orders or contract modification. The Group may
require a deposit before the commencement of the
contracts. This would give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract until the revenue recognised on
the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit
received. When a particular milestone is reached, the
Group will submit an internal progress report for the
related milestone payment in accordance with the
agreed milestone payments as specified in the contract.
If the milestone payment exceeds the contract liability
then the Group recognises a contract asset for the
difference. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point the customers issue the certificates. The normal
credit term is 0 to 60 days.

For the detail of payment terms of retention receivables,
please refer to note 20(a).

5.

WERHBER &)

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(continued)

Revenue from construction contracts of renewable energy
systems

Revenue from construction of renewable energy
systems is recognised over time based on the stage of
completion of the contract using the output method as
the Group’s contract work enhances an asset that the
external customers controls as the asset is enhanced.
The contracts signed with customers are fixed-price
contracts. The Group may require customers to provide
an upfront non-refundable deposit. This would give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract until the
revenue recognised on the relevant contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit received. When a particular
milestone is reached, the Group will submit an internal
progress report for the related milestone certification.
If the milestone payment exceeds the contract liability
then the Group recognises a contract asset for the
difference. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point the customers issue the certificates. The normal
credit term is 0 to 60 days.

5.

Wk ER &)

(a)

sk (42)

BEFEHZBHERE(E)
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5.

1 34 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W#H Ko &ER (&)
(continued)
(@) Revenue (continued) (a) Wm(#E)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers EFANZBHEML(E)
(continued)
Revenue from sales of piles KEHEETZ W
Revenue from the sales of piles are recognised at a point HEBRERNREA R mIE G EEE A
in time when the control of goods has transferred, being B2 R ERERPEEN
when the goods have been shipped to the customers’ It BhHERR o ““Fﬁﬁ:?&ﬁ%@}fﬁ% $
specific location. A receivable is recognised by the SEEREWRGIE  REAE/
Group when the goods are delivered to the customers M@= BRI BN R E— 1I7:<15F ,\J$
as this represents the Group's right to consideration SEWHMAREZ MR R EGES - %
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is FPRUIE & T 15R [0 SR E ol 5o 32
required before payment is due. The customers have NER - BEFPEITNANREHR
neither rights of return nor rights to defer or avoid BIEEBREeY - —REEHARMEY
payment for the goods once they are accepted by the =
customers upon receipt of goods. The contracts signed
with customers are short-term and fixed price contracts.
The normal credit term is 7 days upon delivery.
Rental income HEBA
2019
2019
HK$’000
FET
For operating lease variable lease payments FEEURAR I B IR
that do not depend on an index or a rate EEHEREHEENK
(note) (KH&E) 646
Note: Amount being rental income from lease of a solar power MizE : ©2EAKRKAEERR KL E I

system in the PRC. The rental income of HK$646,000
(2018: HK$782,000) is contingent on the power usage by
the lessee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by business lines in
a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s Chief Operating
Decision Maker (“CODM") being the executive directors
of the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. The Group's reportable
and operating segments are as follows.

- Building construction business: provision of
foundation works and ancillary services and
general building works to customers in Hong
Kong and Saipan

- Sales of piles: sales of piles to customers in Hong
Kong

- Renewable energy business: construction projects
of renewable energy systems (e.g. solar power
systems and wind power systems) and rental
income from lease of solar power system in the
PRC

No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the reportable segments.

Segment results, segment assets and liabilities

Segment results represent the (loss) profit before
tax from each segment except for the unallocated
corporate expenses, being central administrative costs.

Segment assets include all current and non-current
assets with the exception of deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets, being the unallocated right-
of-use assets of certain properties and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all current and non-
current liabilities with the exception of other corporate
liabilities, being unallocated lease liabilities and other
unallocated corporate liabilities.

5.

Wk ER &)

(b)

DEER

AEEREGREELER - A%HE
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FXEEERRE(ETBRERE
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7B e
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DEEEREE D BB B4
A - FREADEA R X (B &7T
BHM) -

THEEREMARDEERDE
E HETEREERAEEREMD
XEE AETYMENRDBEERE
BENHEMOREE - DHAEEE
AR RIFRBAE  HETEEER
feRBIAE RSP EHERBERE
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sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

KmkaBER 2)

DRER(E)

(b) Segment information (continued) (b)

DEHME - D HEERRMEE)

Segment results, segment assets and liabilities
(continued)

RFEABEIR DB K BB R IR G
RETAREEIELLERRENAE

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’'s CODM for the purposes

of resource allocation and assessment of segment Eo 2O EPERY RO T -
performance for the year is set out below:
Segment revenue and results B R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE019512R318LEE
Building Renewable
construction Sales energy
business of piles business  Unallocated Total
BETR BLRR
% HERE % AR gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TR
Reportable segment revenue BEL Ve 207,21 2,857 36,732 = 246,880
Reportable segment (loss) profit beforetax T 282 SBHE AT (B18) &) (91,413) (820) 29 (17,364) (109,368)
Amountsincluded in the measure of seqment SADBERT N TEEHE
profit or loss or seqment assets: kX
Interest expenses HEEY 4110 - 597 98 4,805
Depreciation for the year EniE 4,144 - 2,485 1,156 7,785
Impairment losses under crecit loss model, EEBEE\THHERR
net of reversal b6 3 dm] 88,297 - - - 88,207
Impairment losses of ight-of-use assets FREEENEER 1123 - - - 113
Interest income LN 580 - 57 - 637
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE  BRERRENIE
and equipment 500 - - - 500
Additions to non-current segment assets RERDIFEERE 3,268 - 7859 3,754 14,881

1 36 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

BA 5 R R B ot

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WEksHER#)

(continued)
(b) Segmentinformation (continued) (b) DEER(E)
Segment results, segment assets and liabilities TENEE P HEEREE(E)
(continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued) KB RERE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENI8F AR
Building Renewable
construction Sales energy
business of piles business Unallocated Total
BETR TELRR
B HERT 55 AR Eh)
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL T T Fin Tin
Reportable segment revenue PEE LS 4145 65834 7 - 610761
Reportable segment profit (loss) before tax T2RABRB RN (R 0408 9875 (709 (7,709) 21869
Amounts included in the measure of segment AN BERY D DEENE
profit or loss or segment assets: L5E:
Interest expenses R 3657 - 164 = 380
Depreciation for the year ERfE 3615 - 165 o 3780
Impairment osses under credit loss model, EEBEEATH
net of reversal HEEE NREE 119 . - - 1193
Interest income FBRA 149 - I - 150
(Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BERRGONE 1417 - I - 1441
Additions to non-current segment assets RERSAPEERE 34 = 6,99 5 730
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

1 38 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Segment information (continued)

Segment results, segment assets and liabilities

(continued)

5. WEkoIER2)

(b) DEER(E)

DERE D HEEREMEE)

Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHEIT
Segment assets PWEE
Building construction business AT IRET 465,804 578,461
Sales of piles HEBE 15,965 16,709
Renewable energy business Al A REIRET 69,944 30,543
Elimination of inter-segment 73 ) JE WS R T8 4 8
receivables (39,567) (41,161)
512,146 584,552
Other corporate assets HEihEEE 3,552 -
Deferred tax assets BEFIBEE 2,044 313
Consolidated assets SEEE 517,742 584,865
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET THET
Segment liabilities PEEE
Building construction business BETRER 257,939 244,934
Sales of piles SHE BT 4,163 4,077
Renewable energy business Al A REIRET 58,462 33,067
Elimination of inter-segment 530 ) JE A< SR TR S 8
payables (39,567) (41,161)
280,997 240,917
Other corporate liabilities Hth A AR&EE 2,516 1,062
Consolidated liabilities meafl 283,513 241,979
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued)

Geographical information

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers/tenants and (ii) the Group's
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and goodwill (“Specified Non-Current Assets”). The
geographical location of customers/tenants is based
on the location at which the services were provided or
the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
Specified Non-Current Assets is based on the physical

5.

Wk ER &)

(b) DHRER(E)

TREIEBOAEESLES,TE
Pl R AEEOME - BEREK
e ERAEEERAE((HEFRD
BEDOWBLEER - 2R HF
WM ERENRERRBARXNED
MEME ° FEIFRBEEMIEN
ERENEENERME (BYE B
FERhEBARERBEEEMNS ) ARE
EESRNZEWE(HEMS)Mm

location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and E e
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of
goodwill.
Revenue from external customers/tenants: IPEE HEWE :
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BAE(LEME) 205,813 370,961
The PRC s 36,732 782
Saipan SETR 4,335 239,018
246,880 610,761

Geographical location of the Specified Non-Current

BEFRRDEENHELGE :

Assets:
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT T4
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB(ZE ML) 8,322 1,557
The PRC Fh 31,543 27,958
Saipan SEIE 75 277
39,940 29,792
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sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERksHER#)

(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER(E)
ETEEFEH

Information about major customers

FARBERMANEBE AU EEB10%

Revenue from customers during the year contributing

over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: RPN T ¢
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer A (note)’ ZEAFIFE) N/A?
i At 239,018
Customer B! BB N/A*
i A 71,346
Customer C2 BEC N/A*
TiE 65,834
Customer D! BED 40,636 63,765
Customer E! =P N/A*
46,999 NEA
Customer F! 2B N/A¥
31,668 TEA
‘ The customer did not contribute over 10% of total ¢ ZEFRHBTFETEERMASE
revenue of the Group during the relevant year. U FRIB10% ©
1 Revenue related to building construction business 1 BRARETIRERD IPHUE -
segment.
2 Revenue related to sales of piles segment. 2 BRAHESBEED SRR E -

Note: Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (“Dr. Kan"), a director of the
Company and former executive director holds 10%

M - EHE L ([HEL]) - BARAF
EERARTESEB —MHAE
BERFREREENLARRTFAEER
FPART0%E R o

effective interest in Customer A through a private
company co-owned by the former controlling
shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HWA

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Rental income from lease of machinery B AR A Y AR 2 U A 2,531 375
Forfeited deposits (note) BRMET & (B5E) 1,167 -
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 637 150
Write off of other payables i £ ELAth FE < 5RIE 363 -
Government grants T B 443 -
Others Hip 571 216
5,712 741

Note: Amounts represent deposits forfeited due to the cancellation M ZRIBA—UEFPARBEEREANG

of construction of solar power systems by a customer. BIMZWMETE °

Annual Report 2019 %3¢  CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited F7 X 7215 (BB ) #2 iR A IR A & 1 41



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HibWzmREE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE - BER
plant and equipment B 500 1,441
Change in fair value of financial asset BAFERTAEREN
at FVTPL TREENNFE
2 360 -
Impairment losses of right-of-use assets FREEEREEE (1,123) -
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains b 3, (&5 18 ) W T 28 (134) 107
(397) 1,548
FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBHA
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Interest on bank loans WITERFE 3,079 3,161
Interest on lease liabilities/obligations Efﬁﬁ/?&ﬂ‘iéfﬁf
under finance leases TEYEF B, 899 448
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZFIE 827 212
4,805 3,821
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

9. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX

9. BRBiAT(ER)EF

2019 2018
2019% 20184F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET FET
(Loss) profit before tax has been arrived R F5 A (518 ) F o4&
at after charging (crediting): B (GE A AT &R
1BIET:
(a) Staff costs (including directors’ (a) BIRAK
remuneration) (BFEEM2)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He IEM
H 48 A 56,483 93,165
Contributions to defined contribution F R FURIK
retirement plans FTEI R ER 1,486 2,553
57,969 95,718
Less: Amount included in cost of sales B T ASEE R
e (36,848) (71,494)
21,121 24,224
(b) Otheritems (b) HfthEHE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE N/A
6,632 i A
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BRE R E
equipment bk 1,153 3,780
Less: Amount included in cost of sales B BT ASEERA
B RIE (1,420) (2,698)
6,365 1,082
Operating lease charges: minimum ERESTH -
lease payments in respect of leasing HEMEN N/A
of properties (K SKIE TER 5,229
Less: Amount included in cost of sales o BT AHE N/A
&Nz E e TiEA (553)
N/A
TEA 4,676
Cost of inventories recognised HRARINESE
as expense DN 2,466 54,459
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENEN 1,900 2,780
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE AND

10. FrEH(ER)BAX RIELERIE

DEFERRED TAX
(@) Income tax (credit) expense FrE®i (ER)RAX
2019 2018
20195 20184F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Income tax (credit) expense comprises: PS8 (K% ) F S B4E -
Hong Kong Profits Tax: HBFER
Provision for the year FREE 439 3,663
Underprovision in prior years BEFEBRETR - 76
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax: RS
Provision for the year FARE 62 -
501 3,739
Deferred tax EETIE (1,731) 736
(1,230) 4,475

1 44 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HKS$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKS2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

No provision for income tax expense outside Hong
Kong and the PRC as the Group's subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong and the PRC either did not have assessable
profits or have tax credits in excess of assessable profits
during the year in the relevant jurisdiction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE AND 10. FrSB (KR )BT RIEEH 1T
DEFERRED TAX (continued) (4)
(@) Income tax expense (continued) (a) FrEFEAX(E)
The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled meEEEMEMEEKERPBRA

(BE)EMEFERAEEL)HZ

to the (loss) profit before tax per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive HERWT -
income as follows:
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HKS$'000
F#ET FHEIT
(Loss) profit before tax KRR (E518) % (109,368) 21,869
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of IR A FTSFI R 16.5%
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (2018%F : 16.5%) L (18,046) 3,709
Tax effect of expenses not ATH0H A A
deductible for tax purpose T E 1,066 1,723
Tax effect of income not BARTIAD
taxable for tax purpose M2 (149) (1,110)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised IR IE B
MG TE 16,313 =
Statutory tax concession EEMIGEE (20) (60)
Underprovision in respect of prior years #8714 E#HE 2 - 76
Effect of different tax rate of TEHEMRAERE LR
subsidiaries operating in Oy NI ey
other jurisdictions Fa (394) =
Others Hith = 137
Income tax (credit) expense for the year S RFTISHL(H %) X (1,230) 4,475
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE AND 10. FTEH (R RIELENR T
DEFERRED TAX (continued) (42)
(b) Deferred tax (b) EZEFIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated H2INGEMBRARME - & TE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax EHBEEERBECEREE - 3K
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following SHATHEIEFI B AR DT -
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances before
offsetting:
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Deferred tax assets BLEFIREE 2,121 461
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEAE (77) (148)
2,044 313
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and CHEANTEECEHBEBEEREEMN
assets recognised and movements thereon during the FENAFEE L BETFENEIHOT -
current and prior years:
Accelerated
ECL tax Tax
provision depreciation losses Total
BHEE hnEFiE
EERE wE BIAEE st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET FET
At 1 January 2018 72018 1H1H (401) (648) - (1,049)
(Credit) charge to profitorloss — (FT A)HE#EZR (60) 796 - 736
At 31 December 2018 R20185 124310 (461) 148 - (313)
Credit to profit or loss AR (37) (71) (1,623) (1,731)
At 31 December 2019 20195 12H31H (498) 77 (1,623) (2,044)

1 46 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)
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For the year en

pvE e bR

ded 31 December 2019 # Z2019%F12A31HILEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND DEFERRED TAX

(conti

(b)

nued)
Deferred tax (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$108,710,000 (2018: nil) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$9,836,000 (2018:
nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$98,874,000
(2018: nil) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HKS$7,392,000 (2018: nil) that will expire in 2024. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$12,293,000 (2018:
HKS$7,452,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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EBHHER  MEAURETEETRER
TR RS =R o

CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited Xk 715 (BB ) 1R A R A & 1 47



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS 11. EER{EESM S

ExME

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a)

REBER EMRAUREFE(R
BENARFEESMST ¢

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant ANED Y
to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BZ2019512A310LEE
Retirement
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowance  contribution Total
BIRGHE
EEHd FeREE 3% o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR TR
Executive Directors (note i) BITES ()
Mr. Wu Rui ("Mr. Wu") (note x) RinkE(REE])
(MizEx) = = = =
Dr.Ho Chun Kit Gregory (‘Dr.Ho") (notes iv&x)  fal&4E+([wEL])
(M aEvRx) - - - -
Mr. Lee Kai Lun FIEE & - 1,200 - 1,200
Mr. Guo Jianfeng ("Mr. Guo") (note viii) DHBEE(BEE])
(Pfzkviii) - 1,280 17 1,297
Mr. Lee Sai Man (note vi) FHRLA () - 364 6 370
Dr. Kan (note vi) g+ (Fistvii) - 637 ) 648
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (note vi) BIRESLA (W) - 364 6 370
Mr. Kwong Po Lam ("Mr. Kwong') (note vi) BRMEE(BEE]D
(Fitztvi) - 400 6 406
Non-executive Directors (note ii) FHTEE(H)
Ms. Du Vi (note xi) Tt (M) S - - -
Ms. Yip Man Shan (note x) 3L (R - = = -
Independent Non-executive Directors (note iii) 3 35117 5% (Kt3iii)
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (note xi) liitsEs e (iR 129 - - 129
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong, Philip (note xi) Eik B A (W) 129 - - 129
Dr. Tang Dajie (note xil) AL (Fi &) 129 - - 129
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (note ix) BRARELIE & (B ix) 130 - - 130
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (note ix) PR A (i) 130 - - 130
Mr. Lo Chi Leung (note ix) BER LA (FiEix) 130 - - 130
Total Bt 771 4,245 46 5,068
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

M. EEREEME )

BEEME(E)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HBZ018E1AALER
Retirement
Directors' Salaries and scheme
fees allowance contribution Total
BINETE
BERE  HelkEd iss b
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THEL T Tin ThEL
Executive Directors (note i) HTES (M)
Mr. Lee Sai Man (note vi) FREAE (M) - 1,183 18 1,201
Dr. Kan (note vi) A EL (i) - 1,183 18 1,201
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (note i) ERR LA (M) - 1,183 18 1201
Mr. Lee Kai Lun Gl - 1300 - 1300
Mr. Kwong (note vi) BB (Bsbwi) - 1,300 18 1318
Mr. Guo (notes v & vii) D (Hizty & viil) - 669 52 721
Independent Non-Executive Directors (note iii) 3 #3175 (Kt3iii)
Mr. Fan Siu Kay (note ix) BEAEE A (WiEix) 240 = = 240
Mr. Leung William Wai Kai (note ix) PIRELA (i) 240 = = 240
Mr. Lo Chi Leung (note ix) BER LA (Fix) 20 = = 240
Total gt 720 6,818 124 7,662
Notes: P =

(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were 0] EXTRBTESOME T AR
for their services in connection with the management of EEBAREEEHITREN R -
the affairs of the Group.

(i) The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above (i) EXFARIEBRTESTOMEDER
were for their services as directors of the Company. RELEARRAEEAIRHORT -

(i) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments (il EXFARBIFNTESHMEST)
shown above were for their services as directors of the AR EEREARR B ESIRERN
Company. AR5 -

(iv)  Dr. Ho was appointed as the chief executive officer of (iv) BT R2019F4H26 B EZE AR

the Company on 26 April 2019.

NETTHRAEE,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

1. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

1 50 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(a)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,

certain emoluments of Mr. Guo was paid by # 5= £ AKE
T8 3T AE R EHE B BR A 7], a subsidiary of the Company.

Resigned as executive director on 26 April 2019.

Resigned as executive director on 24 July 2019.

Appointed as executive director on 6 July 2018

Resigned as independent non-executive director on 16

July 20719.

Appointed as executive director on 26 April 2019.

Appointed as non-executive director on 26 April 2019

Appointed as independent non-executive director on 16

July 2019.

No director received any emoluments from the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. Except for Mr. Wu,
Dr. Ho and Mr. Guo, no other directors waived or agreed

to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
23 June 2017. There were no options granted for the
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS

M. EEREEME )

(continued)
(b) Emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (b) EEBEEHFATHEHME
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included AEEhEERFATBREREGES
two directors (2018: five directors), details of whose (20185 : ARES)  HMeMFIS
emoluments are set out in note 11(a) above. Details of HAEXHIFE11@) » KAEEHT =
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2018%F : ) FEARFEEXESIT
(2018: nil) highest paid employees who are neither BAEMGESFATHMSFBOT
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
2019
20194
HK$’000
TET
Salaries and allowance e Kok 3,734
Retirement scheme contribution RIRETEI R 54
3,788
Note: The remaining three highest paid employees were M- B T -2&aF AT AARITE
former executive directors. They resigned as executive oo REZE2019F12A831HIEF
directors but remained as employees of the Group E BEBHAFHRTES > HEDAN
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The SEMEE - FliNe DEERE
remuneration shown above were for their services as E2019F 12 A3 HIEFEEEAAR
executive directors of the Company and employees of FAMITESNAERREENES -
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019.
The remuneration are within the following bands: HFNN R T EE R -
2019
No. of employees
20194
BI#E
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1
3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders F2019F 20184 » MER AR AL BRE
of the Company during 2019 and 2018, nor has any dividend SNKEZTRRE  MERSEHREHTE
been proposed since the end of the reporting periods. BRI EARE -

13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BR(GE)EF
(a) Basic (loss) earnings per share (a) BEBRER(EER)ERR

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$108,138,000 and the weighted average of
612,000,000 ordinary shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the calculation
of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HKS$17,394,000 and the weighted average of
566,794,521 ordinary shares.

HE2019F12831HIEFE @ BE
RNEE IR QR EREELE
$8108,138,00078 T & & i iz hn#E 15
£0612,000,00008 5T &

HE2018F12831HIEFE » BlE
REF THER AR &) &= R B s
H17,394,0007%8 7t} 3 38 B Nt S 39 21
566,794,521 %5t &

2019 2018
2019F 2018%F
Weighted average number of @R INEEIETE
ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1 ATE®
E#HTERAK 612,000,000 512,000,000
Effect of placing of new shares FREFRMDATE
(note 26(a)) (FiE26(a)) - 54,794,521
Weighted average number of L AR N 1 X
ordinary shares 612,000,000 566,794,521
(b) Diluted (loss) earnings per share (b) SBREB(EE)ER

There were no potential dilutive shares in existence
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
and, therefore, no diluted (loss) earnings per share were
presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RARM T

/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BMERRE

Solar Furniture
Plantand power and Motor Office
machinery system fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BER  ABE  3ER ) )
e BEY %E RE  BAERG @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TiER TiER TEL TEL
cost P
At 1 January 2018 20181 A18 106,021 - 3306 1464 141 110,932
Disposals HeE (2,228) - - - - (2,228)
Additions through acquisiton of B BREHELRAFE
subsidiaries - 6,580 - - 17 6,597
Additions NE - %4 118 206 - 418
Exchange adjustments 5% - (247) - 2 2 (247)
At 31 December 2018 12018%12A318 103,793 6427 3424 1,672 156 115,472
Adjustment upon application of RERB BB REES
HKFRS 16 F165F AN BE - (5,130) - (206) - (5,336)
At T January 2019 (restated) 201951 A18 (B E7) 103,793 1,297 3424 1,466 156 110,136
Disposals ﬁ (14259) - - (211) - (14470)
Additions FE - - 675 - 2 700
Exchange adjustments [ HHE - (43) (4) - (1 (48)
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31 8 89,534 1,254 4,095 1,255 180 9,318
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt &
At 1 January 2018 018F1A18 102,569 - 1,934 1,074 88 105,665
Charge for the year ERG 2,880 158 521 192 29 3,780
Eliminated on disposals P ERE (2,084) - = E - (2,084)
Exchange adjustments EHRAE - (10) = _ (1) (1)
At 31 December 2018 #0185 124318 103,365 148 2455 1,266 116 107,350
Adjustment upon application of RERBR BREES
HKFRS 16 B16FRNAE - (120 - (17) s (137)
At T January 2019 (restated) 201951 A1 A (B E7) 103,365 28 2455 1,249 116 107,213
Charge for the year ERMk 385 61 534 143 30 1,153
Eliminated on disposals N EREE (14,259) - - 211) - (14470)
Exchange adjustments [ R ¥ 10 - = (1) 9
At31 December 2019 20195124318 89491 % 2,989 1,181 145 93,905
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December 2019 12019128318 43 1,155 1,106 74 35 2413
At 31 December 2018 12018%12A318 428 6,279 969 406 40 8122
Note: As at 31 December 2019, certain plant and machinery, furniture fizE: M2019F12A318 - ETHRERER

and fixtures, motor vehicles and office equipment with gross
carrying amounts of HK$86,631,000 (2018: 86,455,000), were
fully depreciated but still in use.

86,631,000/ 7T (2018%4F : 86,455,0007 7T )
ZHE R REREE - TEA R
NEREEREIE - HIERERF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, after
taking into account the residual values, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following useful lives:

Plant and machinery 3to 4 years
Solar power system 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 5 years

Assets held under finance leases

As at 31 December 2018, certain motor vehicles and a solar
power system were under finance leases and their net book
value is analysed as follows:

14.

M BERKRE®

Lt - R MRk IR B AR RIS EE
RIZAT A ERFIUBEBRENE -

855 Fe A 3E44F
K5 Be B B U 20%F
RANKE 5%
RE 54
WREDRME 5%
REREHERENEE

2018 12A318 » BEF AEMAKIGRES
;E)Wfﬁ%)fmﬂéﬁﬁ =SHE - MESMERMFEE
DITIT

2018

20184F

HK$'000

FET

Cost — Capitalised finance lease BRA—ERLRERE 5,336
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (137)
Net book value REFE 5,199

As at 31 December 2018, the finance lease of a solar power
system granted to the Group was secured by:

(i) trade receivables of HK$141,000;

(i) registered capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary
amounted to RMB10,000,000; and

(i) a guarantee by the wholly-owned subsidiary in (ii)
above and Dr. Ho.

On application of HKFRS 16, at 1 January 2019, the above
assets held under finance leases have been reclassified to
right-of-use assets.

The Group as lessor
The Group leases out its entire solar power system under
operating leases. The lease run for 20 years. The lease

represents variable lease payment. Details of variable lease
payment one set out in note 5(a).

1 54 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

R2018F12A31H » RTPFAEEHKIFREE
BU R B E TIAT 5 S BRI
() BZEWFIE141,00058 7T :

(i) —EEEMBRFINEMERARE
10,000,0007C : K&

iy  EXGprit e & B AR RAE I E
HEER -
20191 B 1 BRME BT BREERFE 16

SR L}UETF@E,%TH SRHANEECEHN
DREBEREEE -

FEEESHBAA
AEERBEEHEHHEEBAGRERE
o ?ﬂiﬁﬁxﬁzﬁﬁz%zoi HE TR 4 'Tﬁfﬁ
Ko Al EEE N R BERIEES ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. EHEEE

Solar power Motor
Properties system vehicles Total
nE  KBEREY RE fit
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THEL T THER ThEL
Asat 1 January 2019 ®201951 818
Carrying amount gl 4,287 5010 189 9,486
As at 31 December 2019 20195128318
Carrying amount L] 10,582 4673 602 15,857
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHZ2019%12831R
LEE
Additions to right-of-use assets REAEEERE 13711 - 470 14,181
Depreciation charge WEXH (6322) (253) (57) (6,632)
Exchange adjustments EREE 29 (84) - (55)
Impairment losses HEEE (1123) - - (1123)
Total short-term lease payments RHRENRE 3170
Total sub-lease income PHERALE 646
Total cash outflow for leases (note) AERERBAMT) 13,246

Note: Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of
lease liabilities and short-term lease payments.

During the year, the Group recognised impairment losses of
HK$1,123,000 (2018: nil) on certain of its right-of-use assets in
relation to properties used for the Project, as the estimated
recoverable amount is less than the carrying value of the
right-of-use asset.

iz : 2HEeEHEEERENEENRNAS
RMBEBD 25K -

RER - AR U e & 58 D 5
CEZERAEBE WAESBEREBEZBEEA
AMEZEETERBEEERRARERRE
1,123,000787C (20184 : £&) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

15. FRAEEE 2

1 56 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

As at 31 December 2019, the solar power system was secured
by:

(i) trade receivables of HK$88,000;

(i)  registered capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary
amounted to RMB10,000,000; and

(i) a guarantee by the wholly-owned subsidiary in (ii)
above and Dr. Ho.

Lease liabilities of HKS 17,086,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$15,857,000 as at 31 December 2019.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than those set out above and the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not

be used as security for borrowing purposes.

For both years, the Group leases properties, solar power
system and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 20 years. Leases of solar
power system and motor vehicles were previously accounted
as finance leases. The Group sub-leases the solar power
system under an operating lease. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
equipment and properties. As at 31 December 2019, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short term lease expenses
disclosed above.

MN2019E12 8318 - KB5ae3k
FIEERA -

B TIATS

() EHREWFIESS 0008 TT

(i —HE2EMNBARNEMEAARRE
10,000,0007C : K&

(i) EXXGFral =& M B A R R A1E
HE R -

2019 % 12 A 37 CHEREEA
17,086,000 & JT & H 18 B E R R ,éf
15,857,000 70 » Br ESCAT#E & R HEFE A

RS L ENIRPERSEN a"ﬁiﬂﬁ%%;ﬂﬂ
AR - HEEETSBIEGTIEE -

T /

H:nWﬂ

RREFEE  AEERHSEEEYE K
LB N8 - HEAN TR E204F
BEEMEEI Y - KGR BURTEZHE
ERIFIVERERE AR - REBEBRELEH
ENMAIGeEET L o HHE IR E R EAERE
o W BE R AR o REEE R KR
FHE AR 2 RREE - AEBEER
SRNERIETES LA R ITEM -

AEETHARBELYETIRBEHEE - B
2019128318 - REEHSBUN Lt
BEMEHHERYNEHEERS -
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/T\

BB RARM T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

16.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

In May 2019, the Group entered into a life insurance contract
with an insurance company to insure Dr. Kan, a shareholder
and a former executive director of the Company. Under the
contract, the beneficiary and contract holder is Win Win Way
Construction Co. Ltd ("WWWC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and the total insured sum is US$5,000,000
(approximately HK$39,000,000).

WWWC paid a gross premium of approximately US$3,090,000
(approximately HK$24,102,000), including an investment
component amounting to approximately US$2,905,000
(approximately HK$22,656,000) and a prepayment component
amounting to approximately US$185,000 (approximately
HK$1,446,000). WWWC may request a partial surrender or full
surrender of the contract at any time and receive cash back
based on the value of the contract at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the gross premium paid at inception
plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and minus
insurance premium charged at inception. If such withdrawal is
made at any time during the first to the eighteenth year, a pre-
determined specified surrender charge would be imposed.

The insurance company will pay WWWC a guaranteed interest
of 4.25% per annum for the first year, followed by minimum
guaranteed return of 2% per annum for the following years,
with the actual return determined at the discretion of the
insurance company.

At the inception date, the gross premium was separated
into the investment component of a life insurance contract
and prepayment of life insurance premium. Investment
component for a life insurance contract is classified as a
financial asset at FVTPL, as contractual rights to cash flows do
not represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Prepayment of life insurance premium is amortised on
straight-line over the estimated life insurance contract. At 31
December 2019, the fair value of investment component of a
life insurance contract was HK$23,016,000 while the carrying
amount of prepayment of premium was HK$1,393,000.

6. HtERBEE

20195 « REBEE—ERER ARG AL
—MAFRBEL  BIRERADRRIIT
EEHELRR - REEH  SEAREY
BAEABARRIZZEWBARVEHEET
BERQAR([MERELE])  MEREEA
5,000,0003= 7T ( 4739,000,00058 7T) °

EHEED IR E 493,090,0005 7T (4
24,102,000/ 7C) © B IEIR B #B5 #92,905,000
ZE 70 (#922,656,00078 70 ) KB 24
185,000 7T ( 491,446,000 75 ) ° 1H 2 E
A BERF BRI DR IE Sk 2 ERIEA L - WE
REREBAANRSEBAKEES - BE
REEAEDZZRFEMREBTEME R
2 REFERBEHREFNE - WRE—
FNAFHEEAEREERR - BWREELET
HETERFEE -

RE—FMs  RERARGHEEREES
BEFRAUGTEZRENE - BB FE
BIARBREF O RRE 2% T - BEED
RARBRAREITRE °

REXREE  BRECEDBASRBALN
Z?ﬁﬁ%%&?ﬁiﬁ/\—ﬂ%ﬁ MREEM - AB

REEHNIEERDESERIEATETA
BEarNemEE - EEEWE’:.\’HE%JE’JE%;E
RIRERMBAL KT MNAESEARE &
FIERRHEHESH - ASRRREEA
Z AN FETREGER BT ABRBRE L
B o EAZO 9%12)%315 ABREBEHZ
=B HBDH) A FEA23,0160008 7T @ MIE
RE %ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ 393,000 7T °
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sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

16.

17.

1 58 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 16. HtFRBEE @)
As at 31 December 2019, the directors of the Company 2019128318 » XRABEERAEANEEH
considered the Group will not terminate the life insurance BreRnmERRET T —EARKIEAS
contract within twelve months from the end of the reporting REBREH  AMESRESBAIERDEE -
period and the balance is therefore classified as non-current
assets.
As at 31 December 2019, the expected life of the life insurance 2019F 128318 + ASRBREHNTETTF
contract was remained unchanged from the date of the initial BRI HER B EBRREFTE  KARFESE
recognition and the directors of the Company considered the RAETEEEBER EASRBRE K
chance of exercising the option to surrender the life insurance FTHEHM - RIEEANEEREYUBZED
contract is remote. The financial impact of the option to Ko
terminate the contract was insignificant.
At the end of the reporting period, the life insurance contract RIBEEER - ASREBADDIEEZE AR
has been assigned to secure the banking facilities granted to BYRAEENRITEE -
the Group.
GOODWILL 17. B&
HKS$'000
FHET
CosT &N
At 1 January 2018 7201851 H1H -
Acquisition to subsidiaries (note 25) IR BEHI B A B (Fg5E25) 22,522
Exchange adjustment PEE 5 3 B (852)
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 7201845124318 F20195F12A31H 21,670
CARRYING AMOUNT fRmEE
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 2018512 4318 &2019%12 A31H 21,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. B8 %)

Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating unit
("CGU") identified according to country of operation and
operating segment as follows:

BEHENREELENVANRERNR

BERREEMERRREENBOREN
SECRINRCELBN([ReELE
D -

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTET FHAT
Construction projects of renewable FE A AR B
energy systems HH
- PRC — 21,670 21,670

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts approved by
management covering a period of five years. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 2% (2018: 1%). The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 24% (2018: 25%), which
reflects specific risks relating to the segment.

In view that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying
amount of the above CGU, there is no impairment of goodwill
allocated to the above CGU during the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

In the opinion of directors, any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumption would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the recoverable
amount.

WEEEBUMAIRE S EEIREREE
BAET - 2SS EAFERENCEREN
HENAFHYBENNRESRIEA - AF
HEMIRERFERMETHERE2%HEE (2018
F %)  c BeRERARESSETRRS
AL % 49%(20184F : 25%)BLIE

AR A ¢ EEBA FlR e EEBARER
H1E @ REZE2019F K2018F 12 A31HIEF
B pREELMRECEABMNHEVEML
fAlRE °

BEERR  EAZERJNEMAIEA G
BTG THSReELBU 2 REAE
BarREEER -
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18. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

18. ARBEEMEBAAFE
AR FREE R E R A B A
AFEWT -

Proportion of
ownership interest

1 60 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Place of Issued/paid Group's
Name of company incorporation up capital effective interest  Principal activities
& ] RERESL
DEER LA 3t B BT/BRRE  ARENERER TEER
2019 2018
20194 2018
WWWC Hong Kong HK$81,636,000 100% 100% Construction and engineering
e BE 81,636,000 7 BERTR
Smart City Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Construction and engineering
B IIEERAA BE 10,0007%7T BERTR
Win Win Way Materials Supply Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Trading of piles
EADHERAR BE 10,000%7T BHEE
Win Win Way Construction Co., Saipan US$200,000 100% 100% Construction and engineering
(Saipan) Inc. E30 200,0003 7T BERTE
IEHEREHERRRER AR The PRC RMB9,016,000 100% 100% Construction and engineering
i AR#9,0160007 BERTRE
)l SER T2kt AR A The PRC Nil 100% 100% Construction and engineering
h = BERTR
HRBREBH RN BRAR The PRC RMB3,014,000 100% 100% Construction and engineering
i ARH3,0140007 BERTRE
HRERERRRRER AR The PRC RMB630,000 100% 100% Leasing of solar power system
i ARH630,0007C REAFBEEE
* Wholly owned domestic limited liability enterprise established * RAAEBEK I EZEBRRNERAR]

in the PRC.
The above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at any
time during both years or outstanding at 31 December 2019
and 2018.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

LItHIE AR RARRRREERA -

2019 K 2018512 A31 8 » #EME A
PR BT AESES ib’“ﬁﬁ{l
FEEBETEMABATTEEEES

J:%:zﬁlmjzl&/&ﬂ%$mﬁ£§waZJSEE%
ARBEERBBZARAMBAR - AR
EER5 REEMHEA TE’inliAgiﬁl
RIRENITER -
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ES R HMEKRE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FETT
Trade receivables (note (i) B 5 FEBEIA (M13E0)) 214,073 93,550
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEHERG
(note (ii)) (B (i) (66,134) (145)
147,939 93,405
Deposits (note (if)) & (FEEG)) 6,671 4,544
Prepayments TR IR 4,033 2,025
Other receivables H A fEURGRIB
(notes (ii) and (iii) (B Gy R Gii) ) 12,354 45,698
170,997 145,672
Analysis for reporting purpose as FLERRIME DO
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,970 545
Current assets mENEE 169,027 145,127
170,997 145,672
Notes: 5T

(i) As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$58,987,000.

(if) Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits are set out in note 27.

(iii) As at 31 December 2019, included in the other receivables was
an aggregate amount of HK$5,448,000 (2018: HK$39,784,000)
representing the Group’s payment on behalf of the Customer
A for certain expenses (2018: purchase of materials and certain
expenses). As at date of this report, the balance was fully
repaid.

(i)

(iii)

R2018F1A1H - RERBEFEHONES
JE U FRIR 5558,987,00078 7T °

B 5 REWHIR - H b EREIR RIS RE
Al 2 FEIBH N RE27 -

M20195F 124318 « AfbEUGRIBBEAR
EEREFAZNMETHZ (20184 : &
BEMERFRIERE T )6 154480007
JC(20184F : 39,784,000/ L) - MARE R
H - B TRHEE -
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

19. ESREMEWRIEE)

1 62 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Ageing analysis

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses) presented based on the certificate
date whilst revenue relating to substantially all of these trade
receivables are recognised over time:

SRR AT

RERARBHZINE HRKE IE(?WH*,\
EIERME) (M BB K E D ZFE 5 R
ﬁ%ﬁE’\]H&ﬁﬁi’iﬁzﬁﬁf;?aﬁﬁ%m)Z@Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁlﬂ— :

2019 2018
20196 20184
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month HE AR 19,926 27,342
1to 2 months 12218 A 12,334 3,658
2 to 3 months 2231 A 977 4,872
Over 3 months @A E 114,702 57,533
147,939 93,405

Trade debtors are normally due within 0 - 60 days from invoice EWE ZESH— MR BEEHHEIT0E60H

date. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$115,679,000 (2018: HK$62,405,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$114,702,000 (2018: HK$56,910,000) has been
past due 90 days or more. Except for HK$10,751,000 (2018:
HK$56,910,000) is not considered as in default due to the
customers have a good track record with the Group, the
remaining are credit-impaired.

Details of impairment assessment on trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
are set out in note 27.

WEIER o REEE W MmBEZ E AR IF B R
ﬁuu ©

201912 A31H » FARKEE 5 I
RIBL & AR AE%58115,679,00078 7T (2018
F 1 62,405,000 70 ) W EMER S - BN
HERREHBHE R - FEBHEsT
114,702,000 7T (20184 : 56,910,000 7T )
B HEIo0 A s LA £ » BR10,751,0007 7T (2018
% 156,910,000/ 70 ) W TR BELIN - R

ARRFENSEGRIFEERS 8 T4
BEEERE -

BRAEZE 2019 %20185F12 A31HILFER
5 REAFEWEIE 2 B E T EFIEEYIR
BesE27 ©
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ded 31 December 2019 # Z2019%F12A31HILEE

20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

20 ENEEREBHER

LIABILITIES
(@) Contract assets BHEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FE&T FHEIT
Contract assets arising from EEfARAOH
performance under BHEE
— building construction business — TR 234,380 359,218
— renewable energy business — Pl AAREIRER 29,587 -
263,967 359,218
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EE SRR (24,958) (2,650)
239,009 356,568

As at 1 January 2018, contract assets amounted to
HK$320,472,000.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration for work performed that is not yet
unconditional. Contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights to consideration become
unconditional.

The Group’s construction contracts normally include
payment schedules which require stage payments over
the construction period once milestones are reached.
The Group also typically agrees to a one to two years
retention period for 5% to 10% of the contract value.
This amount is included in contract assets until the end
of the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to
this final payment is conditional on the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

R2018F 1 A1 H
320,472,000/ 7T °

CANMEBEER

BHBEERARELE A ME R ARK
REGN THERBRKEZERN - &
WEN B Z BRI S E AR - B4
BEEEREEHRIFE

AEENEESOBFEE N FEMH
K REREERRERETEER
BOBEENR - AREBETRE—
EMFHRETH RES/ANEE
HIS%ZE10% > HRAKBZEEZEF R
RINFOENAGARENTES
MEMBRRRBRETAEE Ut
BT ARKEE  BEERTHERR
Ik o
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

1 64 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Contract assets (continued)

Included in carrying amounts of contract assets
as stated above comprise retentions receivable
of HK$58,589,000 (2018: HK$86,054,000) as at 31
December 2019.

The retention receivables that is expected to be
recovered within one year and after one year is as
follows:

(a)

20. BHNEEREGHNERE®)

BHEBEE)
2019128318 » st A LA HE
EE M BR T (B B 15 JE RUR B £ 58,589,000

T (20184F 86,054,000 7T) °

TEEAR — F R N — T 18 Uk Bl 49 FE UR 1R
Bauwh

2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 10,244 19,831
After one year —F1& 48,345 66,223
58,589 86,054
The Group classifies these contract assets as current AR AEEEHeRIER 2 EBEHNRN

because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

Details of the impairment assessment on contact assets
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set
outin note 27.

Annual Report 2019 Fif

BRANEE  HALEEREAYL
BESEETD -

HZE2019F 201812 A31HIEFE
A 48 ERET BRI 27 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—
4raf

For the year en

pvE e bR

ded 31 December 2019 # Z2019%F12A31HILEE

20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

20. BHNEEREGHNEE®)

Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ExT FET
Contract liabilities arising from billings 2 4 B B 49 BT 3K &)
in advance of performance under AHaE
- building construction business — AR TRER 16,232 5,238
— renewable energy business — Pl BAREIRER 768 -
17,000 5,238

As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to
HKS$12,115,000.

Contract liabilities are classified as current as they
are expected to be settled within the Group’s normal
operating cycle. The balance of contract liabilities
has increased mainly due to the increase in billing in
advance of construction contracts.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
construction activity commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, the deposit
will set off against contract assets and/or progress
billings in the later stage. The Group typically receives
certain percentage of deposit before construction work
commences. Deposits may be forfeited if construction
contract is cancelled by the customer.

R2018FE1A1H - 8408 EA
12,115,000/ 7T °

RS R ST L
BNAE  WASRARD - AR
EEBENHEIEREAREANE
(R -

AR5 0 12 55 0% ) 7 46 AT M R IZ
AR A NRARBEELESR
B BHERERMEHEANEE
SREBENK - ARE-RER
SETRRMEANKRERE T B LR
- HEFPBURREALN @ AIRER
SHOZU o

Bl S 13

??@I@F@%
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 20. BHBEREGHNERG®)
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (continued) (b) BHEGBE)

Significant changes in contract liabilities are explained

BMABENEAREPMMINT -

as follows.
2019 2018
20194 20184
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at 1 January MR BmES 5,238 12,115
Billing in advance of construction BESHNBNRIA
contracts 12,938 1,264
Revenue recognised that was included Ef AEFA LB EiE
in the contract liabilities balance B RS
at the beginning of the year (1,176) (8,141)
Balance at 31 December K12 A31 B &R 17,000 5,238

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount of
revenue recognised during the year from performance
obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous
periods is HK$14,301,000 (2018: HK$8,303,000), mainly
due to the changes in estimate of the transaction price
of certain construction contracts.

HE2019F12831BIEFE - FAR
BETT (HFHET) UEEEELY
EBERN NG S FE/514,301,0008 70
(20184 : 8,303,00087C) ' FER
EAEE TREEGANZT ZHERMGTE
E °

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED 21. BERVITHES SHEART
BANK DEPOSITS &
Bank balances carry interest at variable market rates which RA1T 45 8RR T 55 0% B A 97 F 0% £ 0.10%
range from 0% to 0.10% (2018: 0% to 0.10%). (2018%F : 0%ZE0.10%) 58 °
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks CDIFRARITFERIE AR EEEZEITR
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The pledged B FRITNFER - SEFRITERIR
bank deposits carry market interest rate which ranged from B EFENF010%ZE2.50% (20184 : 4
0.10% to 2.50% per annum (2018: ranged from 0.10% to 1.88% FIENTF0.10%Z21.88%)T & ©

per annum).
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22. ESRHEMENSRIE

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET

Trade payables B S ENIA 113,501 79,703
Other payables and accruals H At T RIE K

et ERA 24,200 40,252

137,701 119,955

The credit period on trade payables is ranged from 30 to 60
days.

Retentions payable of HK$22,041,000 (2018: HK$27,317,000)
is included in the trade payables. Except for the amount of
HK$17,901,000 (2018: HK$19,817,000), which was expected to
be settled after one year, all of the remaining balances were
expected to be settled within one year as at 31 December
2019.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the certificate date.

Z S ENFIENEERNT30E60K °

FE 1~ 1R 28 & 22,041,000 78 7T ( 2018 £ ¢
27,317,000 70 ) 5T A B S FER IR » 742019
F12A318 » 17,901,000/ 7T (2018 4F :
19,817,000 70 ) FEHAR —F & EEH - FTE
MEBEEN —FREE -

1T R B 2 510 5 5B 2 B S AT
m .

2019 2018
20195 20184F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not yet due or within 1 month EARBEASOE AR 64,788 39,277
1to 2 months 12218 A 8,165 9,562
2 to 3 months 22318 A 3,449 8,751
Over 3 months 3@ B A E 37,099 22,113
113,501 79,703
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23. LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS UNDER  23. fAE&fE wEHERE
FINANCE LEASES

(@) Lease liabilities (a) HEERE
2019
20194
HK$’000
FHET
Lease liabilities payable EAfHEEE
Within 1 year 19N 7,647
More than 1 year I FE D2
but less than 2 years 5,131
More than 2 years SR MEDSF
but less than 5 years 3,179
More than 5 years ZI5F 1,129
17,086
Less: Amount due for settlement with Do }‘ﬁ@JE\TE\IET@JT\QTIH gt
12 months shown under HERERR
current liabilities (7,647)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  3ERBI A EE 5K 1218 A 1% 5 HA
shown under non-current liabilities FEA NN 9,439
The lessee’s increment borrowing rates applied by M EETRER  ABAARESE
relevant group entities range from 2.50% to 6.55% per RERERHEE A2.50%26.55% ©
annum.

1 68 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited X 7215 (B BR )RR AR 2 & Annual Report 2019 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS UNDER  23. #HE&A®E #EHAERIE »2)
FINANCE LEASES (continued)

(b) Obligations under finance leases (b) ®EHERIE
At 31 December 2018, the Group had obligations under MR2018F 128318 - AEBEREER
finance leases repayable as follows: EAEER Y HRER :
2018
20184F
Present value of
Total minimum the minimum
lease payments lease payments
SEEENTEE SEEENFKEE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Within 1 year 19N 3,362 3,005
More than 1 year but less than L1 FMEDR2F
2 years 1,157 889
More than 2 years but less than ZR2F DS
5 years 2,360 1,806
More then 5 years LA 2,016 1,860
8,895 7,560
Less: future finance charges B RREFTSE A (1,335) N/A
Present value of lease obligations THERIEBEE 7,560 7,560
Less: Amount due for settlement BORBAEE TR
within 12 months shown 1218 A R EIHA 4
under current liabilities YRR (3,005)
Amount due for settlement after EREBEEFEETIIT
12 months shown under 1218 A 18 2| 28
non-current liabilities T HIRIR 4,555
The obligations under finance leases carried interest BEREARENT BEHER40%E
ranged from 4.00% to 6.43%. 6.43% °
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24. BANK LOANS/BANK OVERDRAFTS

24, BITER BITEX

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Bank loans are repayable (note) FERERITER(MFE)

Within 1 year 1F R 57,342 67,618

More than 1 year but less than 2 years SN EWELR2F 1,970
More than 2 years but less than 5 years LR 2F M DS E 6,215 -
More than 5 years Z A5 3,102 -
Total bank loans RITE AR 68,629 67,618

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the bank loans. These bank borrowings contain a
repayment on demand clause and the amounts are therefore

presented as current liabilities.

Mizk - FER B ERRITERAEN 2 EEE
HEHETE  ZERITERBEZRERE
BIEH > REAmMIARESEE -

1 70 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the above bank
borrowings were secured and guaranteed by a counter
indemnity provided by a subsidiary for the issuance of
guarantee or performance bond.

Bank deposits of HK$40,060,000 (see note 21) and a life
insurance contract (see note 16) were also pledged to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December
2019.

Bank deposits of HK$50,005,000 (see note 21) were also
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group
as at 31 December 2018.

The bank loans bear variable interest rate at 1% above Hong
Kong Inter Bank Offered Rate or the bank’s Hong Kong dollars
best lending rate ("BLR").

Bank overdrafts carry interest at the bank’s Hong Kong dollars
BLR and are repayable on demand.

Details of liquidity analysis for bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts are disclosed in note 27.

R2019F N 2018F 12 A318 » FiltiR1TERK
LA — R B B8 R R Bk 3 HH R AR sk /B 40 (R 3B HR it
K ERERBEERRER -

72019812 A318 » 1717 5040,060,000/%
To (R M EE21 )&—19}/\%—{%@/:.\%@(%1#&
16)ME THF - EAARSEMERIRITE
BHEER -

R2018%F 12 A31H » $R177F5£50,005,0007%8
o (R HIzE2 )DTE%EE?@ TERNEEFE
FIRTTEEMER -

RITEFIR BB RITRES B 1%H)F T

E BRI TRERERFIL ([ RE
BERAE]H A -

o H

RITE S IRAS /_E’\Jﬁé REBERMEG

BIRERER

BABRITERMBITEINREBESHITE
BRI 2730 EE -
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25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 25. BT A &)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZ2018F12A31HLLEFE

HKS'000
FH&T
Fair value of assets of subsidiaries acquired EWREHREAR
EENDTEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BE KEE 6,597
Other receivables and prepayments E IR R
ARt RIE 2,744
Cash and bank balances WRe MRTTHE 260
Trade and other payables 2 5 R E MR FIE (2,845)
Obligations under finance lease B E M E AR (5.278)
Fair value of net assets acquired BURIEFEENLAFE 1,478
Goodwill (note 17) P (fEE17) 22,522
Total consideration paid, satisfied by cash AR & 2R (ELRE 24,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: BEEENE S
U SRR ¢
Cash consideration paid BENBEERE (24,000)
Cash and bank balance Re RIRTTHEH 260
(23,740)
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25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

On 20 June 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with the vendor to acquire 100% of
the issued share capital of TIEN New Energy Development
Limited (“TIEN") at a consideration of HK$24,000,000. TIEN
and its subsidiaries ("TIEN group”) are principally engaged in
engineering development and qualified for main engineering,
procurement and construction in electric power projects in
the PRC with a focus in the application of renewable energy in
the construction sector of the PRC.

All the conditions precedent under the agreement have been
fulfilled and the acquisition was completed on 6 July 2018
("Completion”). After the Completion, TIEN became an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Since the acquisition, TIEN group contributed HK$782,000 to
the Group’s revenue and a loss of HK$ 1,206,000 to the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 December 2018, respectively.

Had the business combination taken place at 1 January 2018
the Group’s revenue and the profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have increased by HK$1,048,000 and
decreased by HK$4,212,000, respectively.

25. WEEMIB 2 |l (&)

M2018F6 H20R « REBEESIVLER
g - WEBRRFse RABBERAE([ A
X 1) BEEEITRRAE100% K 1B A 24,000,000
B e BRREMBAR(TEAXRERDEE
WETEMAE  WEERNBPEENTE
HEMEEIRE HEENEE  ZFNEF
BT ERA R BAERR -

LR AT A SRR B EK - WEEEIR
Br2018F7A6BREA (A ]) - RFTEMK
% BRREKRAAQNGNBEZZENBA
E—J o

BUEELAR » AREBEARNEEEHZE2018
F12A318 EFE R E KaF 5 5K
782,000/ 7t M 518 1,206,00078 7T ©

HMEKAHMN2018F1 A1 B34 - BIARE
BHZ=2018F12A31 B I FERUE B EF]
1 53 Bl 3 AN1,048,0007% 7T MR 44,212,000

o

dl = \
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26. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

26. RAR =)

(a) Share capital (a) MR
THE COMPANY
YN
2019 2018
2019% 2018F
No. No.
Par value of shares Amount of shares Amount
HE RA#E 8 LG 8
$ HK$000 HK$'000
T T T
Authorised ordinary shares EELER
At 1 January and 31 December MATAR12A318 001 1,000,000,000 10,000 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary ~ BETRETZER
shares
At 1 January Rn1AA 0.01 612,000,000 6,120 512,000,000 5120
Placing of new shares (note) B sitn (FitE) 001 - - 100,000,000 1,000
At 31 December R128318 001 612,000,000 6120 612000000 6,120
Note: BEE -

On 15 June 2018, a total of 100,000,000 shares were allotted
and issued at a price of HK$0.84 per share. The Company
received net proceeds of approximately HK$81,300,000 (after
deducting issuing expenses) in respect of the placing of new
shares under general mandate.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may
be applied by the Company subject to provisions,
if any, of its memorandum and articles of
association in paying distributions or dividends to
equity shareholders.

(b)

R2018F6 158 + R EFMR0.84E TTHIEE
fic 3% K %17 100,000,000 A% B {7 ° A2 &) 5L
RIE— MG AR S 3R D EVS FT B 5B
£84981,300,00078 7T (FNBR TR -

RENEEREHN
(i) RipEE

BROVEERIFEBESRANER
B EARANABERKE R
AR (A BRRT - ATAA
RE AR A s R A
DIRHALE ©
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26. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

1 74 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i)  Share premium (continued)

No distribution or dividend may be paid to equity
shareholders out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(i)  Other reserve

The other reserve mainly represents the deemed
contributions from and distributions to the
then controlling shareholders as a result of the
reorganisation before the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange.

(iii)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association, was HK$153,292,000 (2018:
HK$161,167,000).

Capital risk management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to fund its business,
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

26. RAR i 2)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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26. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d)

Capital risk management (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the bank loans and bank overdrafts
disclosed in note 24 and lease liabilities disclosed in
note 23, net of cash and bank balances and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital and reserves.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes interest bearing loans and borrowings,
and lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases)
less cash and bank balances. Total equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company. During 2019 and 2018
the Group’s strategy was to maintain the adjusted
net debt-to-equity ratio at a reasonable level, not
exceeding 50%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing
or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) requires contractors on
the list of approved contractors for public works (the
“List") to maintain such minimum working capital as
the Government may from time to time determine (the
“Required Minimum Working Capital”). A subsidiary
of the Company is subject to the Required Minimum
Working Capital as the subsidiary is a contractor on
the List. Except for this, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

1 76 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

27. @@T A

Categories of financial instruments (a) £EWMIEZER
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost B AR 2
TRLEE 208,307 196,167
Financial asset at FVTPL BAFEFAEZR
TREEE 23,016 -
Financial liabilities SRIAE
At amortised cost TREE SE R AN 218,320 229,293
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)y HEEKREEEERBE

The Group's financial instruments include financial
asset at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, cash and
bank balances and pledged bank deposits, trade
and other payables, loans from directors, amount
due to immediate holding company, lease liabilities/
obligations under finance leases and bank loans and
bank overdrafts.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk (interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk). The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables,
contract assets, investment component of other non-
current assets, bank balances and pledged bank
deposits.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.

As at 31 December 2019, 39% and 71% of the total
trade receivables and contracts assets was due from
the largest and top five largest debtors respectively.
The total balance of trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables relating Customer A amounted to
HK$193,345,000.

As at 31 December 2018, 52% and 71% of the total
trade receivables and contracts assets was due from the
largest and top five largest debtors respectively. The
total balance of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables relating to Customer A amounted to
HK$271,808,000.

Other than the above, investment component of
other non-current assets, bank balances and pledged
bank deposits, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

1 78 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

Individual credit risk assessments are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not hold any collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is determined individually for
debtors with significant balances or on a collective
basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
assessed the ECL of trade receivables due from Customer
A of HK$169,598,000, contract assets in relation to a
contract with Customer A of HK$18,299,000 and other
receivables related to the Group's payment on behalf
of Customer A for certain expenses of HK$5,448,000.
Customer A is the Group's customer in relation to the
Project. Most of the trade receivables due from Customer
A have been overdue for over 260 days. The completion
of the Project has been delayed for a prolonged period
of time due to (i) the inclement weather; (i) change
of policy on worker visa application, resulting in a
substantial amount of workers could not obtain the
necessary work permit to work; and (iii) change in design
as instructed by the customer. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the management has been in active
discussion with Customer A to recover the debt due to
the Group, including negotiation for repayment plan,
negotiation to secure the outstanding balances with a
charge over the Project and understanding Customer A’s
financial position and assessing its ability to repay the
amounts outstanding through estimated fundings from
Customer A’s shareholders.

27. @I A %)

(b)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment
losses of HK$65,519,000 (2018: HK$128,000) for the trade
receivables and HK$17,928,000 (2018: HK$317,000) for
the contract assets were recognised for the amounts
due from Customer A after taken into the estimated
funding to be received by Customer A from its
shareholders.

As at 31 December 2019, in addition to amounts due
from Customer A, the Group has also assessed the
ECL of its remaining trade receivables and contract
assets due from other debtors individually. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, an impairment loss on
ECL, net of reversal, of HK$470,000 and HKS$4,380,000,
was recognised on trade receivables and contract
assets respectively, for these remaining individual
customers. As at 31 December 2018, the management
had assessed the ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets, including the amounts due from Customer A,
on a collective basis and an impairment loss on ECL,
net of reversal, of HK$30,000 and HKS$1,163,000 was
recognised on trade receivables and contract assets
respectively during the year then ended.

27. @I A

(b)

BBEREEERREE(E)

= B m e R B ()
ESRUKAREHEE (&)

HE2019F12A31HIEFE @ £2&
EEFABBEBRREWENGHTES
EREREFPANREDFIERE
SERBFBEBRENEEZRERIE
65,519,00058 7T (20184F : 128,0005 7T.)
%.17,928,0007 7T (20184F : 317,000/
JL) ©

R2019%F12A31H @ BREWEFPARR
EN - REBNE B TR E M E
HWANEZRWGKIBRAEHEENTE
HEEBEETERIF S - #l22019
FNANHLEFE  BERZSEHTE
BIJ%)E'E’J I SRBRIEREGNEED
RITERIE BB BB E /R EEE (k%
& El )470,000,%75)324 380,000/ 7T ° R
2018512 A31H ' B BIREEEE
FEESERRFERELEENTER
FEEBBE(BERERKEFPAZRIA) -
WHEHBEZBIEFERRE S BN
BHREAHNEENTBHREEBEARE
E B (BB ) 5 5l £30,0007% 7T &
1,163,000/ 7T °

Annual Report 2019 %3¢  CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited F7 X 7215 (BB ) #2 iR A IR A & 1 79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019912A31H ILFfE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the

Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment:

27. @I A %)

(b)

MEEAREREBEEREE(E)

= B m R R B ()

TREHRBREASESTZETEYE
EREBRHENEREEREGNEEN

EE AR -

Internal Gross
External management carrying
2019 credit rating assessment 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
SN s 12825
20195 EEFR EEEIR HEHGEFR BREE
Notes HK$’000
Bz FET
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBHERAIRzEMEE
Trade receivables 19 N/A note 1 Lifetime ECL 44,475
(not credit-impaired)
EC T TER BEE1 ZHEHGEEFR
(REERE)
note 5 Lifetime ECL 169,598
(credit-impaired)
BizEs ZHBRHEEER
(BEERE)
Deposits and other receivables 19 N/A note 3 12m ECL 13,577
Be RAMENFR TEH BiE3 1REAEHEREESE
note 5 Lifetime ECL 5,448
(not credit-impaired)
BizEs EHBRHEEER
(REERHE)
Bank balances and pledged 21 Aa-Baa N/A 12m ECL 41,343
bank deposits (Note 4)
RITESH R EERRITEX Aa-Baa TER 128 A EHEEEE
(Btexa)
Other item
Hitiig
Contract assets 20(a) N/A note 1 Lifetime ECL 241,542
(not credit-impaired)
BHEE TER BEE1 ZHEHGEEEFR
(REERE)
note 2 Lifetime ECL 4,126
(credit-impaired)
B2 EHBRHEEER
(BEERE)
note 5 Lifetime ECL 18,299
(credit-impaired)
BiEEs ZHEHEEEFR
(BEERE)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@ I )
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEREMEEEEREE(E)

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) =B R R EF ()
Internal Gross
External management carrying
2018 credit rating  assessment 12-month or lifetime ECL amount

ShER A 1218 Ak

20184 FEEME EREEFR 2YRDEEFA BEREE
Notes HK$'000
et TR

Financial assets at amortised cost

RBHERAIIEzSRER
Trade receivables 19 N/A note 1 Lifetime ECL 93,550
(not credit-impaired)
B HEMGE i P e THEHEEHE
(REERE)
Deposits and other receivables 19 N/A note 3 12m ECL 50,242
B REMEWEIE TER lhE% 128 ATEHEEEE
Bank balances and pledged bank 21 Aa-Baa N/A 12m ECL 52,520
deposits (Note 4)
PITHEBRRBRIFRITIER Aa-Baa TERA 12EAEREEEE
(Pft5E4)
Other item
HiEH
Contract assets 20(a) N/A note 1 Lifetime ECL 359,218
(not credit-impaired)
BREE i (oAl 2HEREEEE
(REERE)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. EMIT E®)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBEMREEEERBEE)
(continued)
=B E R EEFE(E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: B

B

1 82 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

In respect of these trade receivables, it represents
debtors that have frequently repaid within due dates and
management expects the balances will be fully settled. In
respect of the contract assets, these represents balances
with debtors that have frequently repaid within due
dates and management expects to be fully settled. These
amounts are assessed individually by applying lifetime
ECL approach based on historical default and loss data,
making reference to the average default rates and loss
given default from external rating agency report and
adjusted for forward-looking factors.

MREFEHEYEGRIAM S - HEL
BHEIHANERN ,j‘*&‘/\ =BE
EBIRFHESRBERES - HAaNE
EME  ZFHEEBANGHRER

EIHARNEER  TEEESHE
BB - B2 ERBINEPRT REHE
BEMFHRBORPEHRAE
ZEFRERBIE S E O MEREE
ER2HEREEBREETER
APl WHLATIE LR FETTHE -

In respect of these contract assets, there is evidence 2. MEZEERNEEMNS - BRERS
indicating these assets are credit-impaired. These REBERCEERE - KE2EKR
amounts are assessed individually by applying lifetime BB REERENTFHENE
ECL approach based on historical default and loss data, DEHNBARZEFERBEETL E
making reference to the average default rates and loss R EBEREERAEHENREER
given default from external rating agency report and BOERETER TS - WHRATEER
adjusted for forward-looking factors. ZETRE -
For other receivables and deposits, management of 3. REMERFERZEMS &%
the Group makes periodic assessment under 12m ECL EEEEREBEELEERLE B
on the recoverability of other receivables and deposits a8 R MR ATIE M A BHE 12
based on historical settlement records, past experience BEAEREEEETHIHEMIE
and supportive forward-looking information. For the WHRBERZEHAIREEE - BE
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group 20194F K 2018F 12 A31HIEFE -
assessed that the 12m ECL on these balances are not AEBFTHZELEHN12@A ?EHE
material and thus no loss allowance was recognised. EEBEBITITEKN WA EER
B -
For bank balances and pledged bank deposits, the credit 4, MBITHALEERBITERM
risks are limited because the counterparties are banks s EZEERBRAR - BRAHFH
and financial institutions with sound credit rating by TEBRERTREEETRITER
international credit rating agencies. The Group assessed AT R e REE o  AEER
12m ECL for bank balances and pledged bank deposits EEMEOVREMENGBEIER
by reference to information relating to probability of INEBEEFAREAMNBERS A
default and loss given default of the respective credit FEEIRSEHRER  HRTEHE
rating grades published by external credit rating EEMRITEFCET 12 AFEEE
agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the Group EEETG - REFHEERE - KX
assessed that the 12m ECL on bank balances and EEFHBRTEHRLEEFRITT
pledged bank deposits were insignificant and thus no HENBEAEBEESEBM TR
loss allowance was recognised. B I EERE R -
In respect of amounts due from Customer A, there is 5. REWREFANZREMS - BFE

evidence indicating these assets are credit-impaired.
These amounts are assessed individually by applying
lifetime ECL approach based on the estimated funding
from Customer A’s shareholders and adjusted for
forward-looking factors.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. E@M T Hz)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HBEAKREEEHERBKEE)
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) =B R R EF ()
The following tables show the movements in allowance TREBEREMEITE S EIKGRIER
for credit losses for trade receivables and contract assets SREBENEEHBEEES -

under the simplified approach.

Movements in the allowance for credit losses for trade BoREIRFIENEEEREEES
receivables
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
THRBEERE 2HBHEESE
(KEERE) (BEEERE) @it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET TER
Balance as at 1 January 2018 R20185F1 A1 R4 15 - 115
Impairment losses recognised EHRRREER 30 - 30
Balance as at 31 December 2018 FA2018%1 A1 BH &5 145 = 145
Transfer to credit-impaired HBEDEERNE (128) 128 =
Impairment losses recognised ERERRESE 487 65519 66,006
Impairment losses reversed ERERESRE (17) - (17)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 7201912 A31 B & 487 65,647 66,134
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEMEEEERBEE)

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Movements in the allowance for credit losses for

contract assets

27. @I A %)

= B m e R R E 1 ()

BHEENEEBRRREE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
2HRENEERE 2UEHEEBE
(REERE) (BEEERE) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET THT THT
Balance as at 1 January 2018 201851 A1 B E# 2316 - 2316
Impairment losses recognised ERERRERSE 1,163 - 1,163
Write-offs A (829) - (829)
Balance asat 31 December 2018 12018512431 HHV A5 2,650 2,650
Transfer to credit-impaired HEEEERE (1,810) 1,810 -
Impairment losses recognised ERAREESSE 1,789 20,615 22,404
Impairment losses reversed BEERESSE (96) - (96)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 #2019 12A31 BM&E#H 2,533 22,425 24,958
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Investment component of other non-current assets

The investment in other non-current assets which is
unrated have to be approved by the management.
The management regularly reviews and monitors the
investment. Details of the terms of the investment are
disclosed in note 16. Summary of the fair value and
principal amount of investment component of other
non-current assets is set out below.

27. @I A

(b)

BBEREEERREE(E)

= B m e R B ()
H I B EELKE R 7

ARG EMIERDEEREBLE
EEE EEEBEHRST RER
ZIE - REMBGFNFBERH 16
B-EMERDEERELINLF
BERANSEHAEHINIT -

5=
it

2019
20194

Fair value  Principal Amount
AFE PN
Rating HK$’000 HK$’000
SR T T
A2 23,016 22,656

Liquidity risk TEELEE

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of
loans to cover the expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed funding lines
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

AEEETENNBARBEES S
MREER  BREEEEFARRER
HIREHERK - AEENHRSTERE
REMLREHABESHTEAREE
STRERRENER - NERER TR
ReRBEMETEMBRERTRR
MAHEESRE  BNEEHLREE
HHRHESHR -
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27. @I A %)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the end of the reporting period of

the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including

interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay.

BBEREEEBRREE(E)

mBELmE(E)

TERAVNAEESRABERRE AR
MR HRIER - WHREEH
AUBRRSRE(BRERRE O XD
BF R BIRBRIRE AR AEF
RIFENNBNFT) RAREAIHE
KR RFAHES -

At 31 December 2019
#2019%12A318
Weighted Total More than More than
average contractual Within Tyearbut  2yearshut
interest Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
rate amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5 years 5 years
SRR 1ERE SME Sif
TSR RESR REREAR EZX  BOME  HOWSE SIR5E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Tén Tén Thn Thn Tin
Bankloans - varizblerate  ${TER
s Lk 445 68,629 68,629 68,629 - - -
Bank overdras BITEX 513 17,023 17,023 17,03 - - -
Trade and other payables  E5REMERFE - 114821 114821 112,639 2182 - -
Amount due toimmediate  EREFERAT
holding company HE - 17,847 17,847 17,847 - - -
Lease liabilities E8F 513 17,086 17,116 8,371 4,501 3,049 1,195
235,406 235436 224,509 6,683 3,049 1,195
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €I A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEREMEEEEREE(E)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) mBELEE(E)
At 31 December 2018
0185128318

Weighted Total More than More than
average contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
interest Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
rate amount cshflow — ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
ANARR TS SiE SiE
MmETaHE FHEE RenseR B2k BOROF  EORF SIS
% HKY000 HKY'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TiEn Tin Thn TERL TEL ThL
Bank loans - variable rate HER
—FEH% 481 67618 67618 67618 - - -
Bank overdrats BiTEX 550 13272 130 131 - - -
Tradeand other payables BB REMEMNFE - 119955 119,955 118713 1242 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BETREAE
leases 582 7,560 8,895 3362 1157 2360 2016
Loans from directors REEEHET 513 20,888 22332 - 233 - -
229,293 232072 202,965 U731 2360 2016

MAERERERGRORITERKLE
SXETALARBIE B DHTH [ —F A E

Bank loans and overdrafts with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “within 1 year or on demand”

time band in the above maturity analysis.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$68,629,000 (31 December 2018: HK$67,618,000).
Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such bank loans will
be repaid after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements, details of which are set out in
the table below.

LR P fEIER o

MR2019F12 8318 » ZFRITERE
TH #8118 568,629,000/ 7T (2018412 A
318 :67,618,000/7T) « EEE|IAEE
MBI - AR EERAERITT
AT EHERAERKZBIER -
AABEERE  ZFRITEFER
WEHREBRBEERGHMBHTET
ERAHEER  FBEHERTE-
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

27. @I A %)

1 88 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HBEAKREEEHERBKEE)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEESERE(E)
Morethan ~ More than
Tyearbut  2years but Total
Within less than lessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
1year 2 years 5years Syears  cashflow amounts
SME SRE KERRS
1Bl BORE  EORSE SRSE REHAE EHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL TEL TEL TEL THL
31 December 2019 2019124318 58,730 2,231 6,693 3,160 70,814 68,629
31 December 2018 20181248318 69,393 - - - 69,393 67,6018
Interest rate risk FIZ 7 f
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future MERERA—HEHLE TLARNAFES

cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
lease liabilities (see note 23 for details). The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances and pledged bank deposit
(see note 21 for details) and variable-rate bank loans and
overdrafts (see note 24 for details). The Group has not
used financial derivatives to hedge against the interest
rate risk. However, from time to time, if interest rate
fluctuates significantly, appropriate measures would be
taken to manage interest risk exposure.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-
bearing loans and overdrafts of the Group are disclosed
in note 24 to these financial statements.
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sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately HK$428,000 (2018:
HKS$405,000), in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis as 2018.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as substantially all of the Group's
transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars or
the Group entity’s respective functional currency.

In addition, the subsidiaries with functional currency
as Renminbi ("RMB”) have intra-group liabilities of
HKS$5,343,000. The exposure to RMB exchange rates
fluctuation is also expected to be not significant.
Sensitivity analysis is therefore not presented.

Fair value measurements

As at 31 December 2019, some of the Group's financial
assets are measured at fair value. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

27. @I A

(b)

(c)

BBEREEERREE(E)

FIEmpE (&)
BRE DT

M2019% 128318 » A REE
F TRBESOMEE RS - i AT A E B8
R RIS BB B R R AR
B fEst B EEMNEBE A T
Bé 1 36 > 18 A0 #9428,0005 7T (2018
T 1 405,000/87T) °

ERAGRESFIIERMREEHER
BERRBELEMETE > YEAREH

EEFEEAETESR T EMF RER
oo RIBO IR EL20184F 48 [A) B H
HT o

S B

AEEY BAZERIINERR - RE
EEAZIKEI%EKjE"“%LA/%TE‘JZ$
SEERSEANNEERE-

o - hEEEB A ARE(TARKE])
"I B A Bl 2 & B & & {& 45,343,000
BT o ARMTER L E)E N IEHT
BA At WESFIBUBEST

ATEIE

M2019F12A318 » KEBEI D@
BEDAAFERNE - TRIBERET
ZECMEEATFENER(EEM
= 0 BERARBERN RS AZKE)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €T R
(c)  Fair value measurements (continued) (¢ AFEFEE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are RIBZAEMEEZ N FEFTENEE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis Bt@EEZAFE
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 2019 12431 HB) - FEZFR
Valuation
Fairvalue  technique(s)
Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s)
AFE AFEER HERMRIEBAHE
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TER THET
Investment component of a life insurance contract Assets - Nil  Level 3 Valuation technique:
ABRREDNRELD EE- & F=R B R -
23,016 Discounted cash flows
BRBReNE
Key inputs:
FEHARE

Expected cash flows,
discount rate and
discretionary return
estimated by the issuer

FEHEERE  BRE

RET ARG 2B

B
Key unobservable inputs used include expected FIERAMNEETISREHARBREE
cashflows, discount rates and discretionary return TR eRE - BRERIEITAMG
estimated by the issuer. The higher the expected Frz MBS - THER @R E REIT
cashflows or discretionary return estimated by the AFTEET 2 BB RESS - AFER
issuer, the higher the fair value. The higher the discount = BREYR  AFEME - HE
rates, the lower the fair value. Fair value gain of 2019F12A31RIEFE » R¥EKE
HK$360,000 is recognised in profit or loss for the year 360,000 7L B R IB 5 iERR ©

ended 31 December 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 (continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the directors of
the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values. Such fair value have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on the discounted cash flow analysis.

28. COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2018, the Group's total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

as follows:

27. @I A
€ ADFESR(E)

REEEMEER N FEGTEHEE
ELMEEZ X FEE)

FR2019F 12 H31 HEY N FEZR(E)

RImERK - B
A B EER -

FoMEE =

2019F X 20185%F 12 A31H » KAF]
EZRA  NERAMEmMRIZEHEK
KIS RMEENRRBEERNSHN
NEERE - BEEATFEEIRERER

RERENMHAREBEAETE -

28. EIE

2018F 128318 » NEBRIE T AT HUEEAS
LHERNNARSERSHFTERENT ¢

2018
20184
HK$'000
FHET

Within 1 year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

1FR
o ek ES R
(BEEEMTE)

3,242

1,551

4,793

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties

held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an

initial period of 1 to 3 years. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

AEESREEEMERENZ RN FA A
BA - BREEHR R E3F - ZFHE
TEREIAEE -
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29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 29. RiEIHEL A BMNYE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities THRAMAEEREZDEENEBENE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- g BIERENIIFRSET  EETHES
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are HNEBEERSRENA KBS REBR K
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, EEMNGAERERERAPEERE TN
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows WERE -

as cash flows from financing activities.

Lease Amount

liabilities/ dueto

Amounts obligation immediate

due to related Bank Interest under  Loansfrom holding
parties loan payable finance leases directors company Total

EREES HEEE/ RAESN ENERER
[E RTER BRAS REHEEE X DEwRE gt

HK$1000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
T TEL TEL TEL TEL ThL TEL

(note)
(P3t)

At1 January 2018 R0I8ETAIE 4345 50,99 - 9,135 - - 64476
Financing cash flows HEGERE (4345) 16622 (3821) (6853) 23 - 2393
Interest expenses kR - - 3821 - - - 3821
New finance lease through BENENELT

acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25) ~ HTIERVETE

(B3 2s) - - - 578 - - 578

Deemed contribution from shareholders R A B2

forinterestfree loans qranted tothe  EFE{ERTTE

Group - - - - (1444) - (1,444)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E128318 - 67,018 - 7560 20888 - 96,060
Adjustment upon applicationof  FREETEEI TSR

HKFRS 16 F16FENAR - - - 4578 - - 4578
At1 January 2019 {restated) R019E1A1H

(&=51) - 67618 - 12,138 20888 - 10064

Financing cash flows HERERE - 1011 (3.906) (10,076) (20888) 17847 (16012)
New leases entered BAUHEE - - - 14181 - - 147181
Interest expenses MEET - - 3906 899 - - 4805
Exchange adjustments i A% - - - (56) - - (56)
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 - 68,629 - 17,086 - 17,847 103,562

1 92 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited X 7215 (B BR )RR AR 2 & Annual Report 2019 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i) At 31 December 2019, the Group had contingent
liabilities in respect of performance bonds to guarantee
the due and proper performance of the obligations
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiaries for projects
amounting to HK$14,771,500 (2018: HK$31,097,500).

(i) In 2012, WWWC set up an arrangement with a third
party to jointly undertake a construction project
with a contract sum of HK$270,000,000. Pursuant to
the requirements of the construction contract (the
"Contract”), WWWC and the third party entered into an
agreement with the customer to jointly and severally
guarantee the due and proper performance of the
Contract and thus the Group had contingent liabilities
in this respect as at 31 December 2019. Given the defect
liability period for the Contract had expired in October
2015 and no claims were received from the customer
up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the directors do not consider it is probable that a claim
would be made against the Group and no provision has
been made in the financial statements.

31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group participates in Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to
a cap of monthly contribution of HK$1,500. The employees
of the Group in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a specific percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$ 1,486,000
(2018: HK$2,553,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

30.

31.

HREE

() MR2019F12A318 » KEBFRERAK
SEMNBARZERITHNIER FTAE
ETMEAEBORESENKAGRE
£14,771,5007% 7 (20184 © 31,097,500
BIL) ©

(i)  F2012F - EFBEEE—FRFE=FF]
VLY REEAE -BANEBESR
270,000,000 8 TTHIEEEIER - IRIEE
£EHW(TZENDWESR - BEHEE
MZE = HEEFF Y —Hips - &
RREREREESRBITZEL
AR EE R 201912 A31 Bttt 74
HARBE - ERNZENNREREH
B R2015F10HEIH - BEZE LS
AR EER BT EKIEFIRDY
MRE  EERATEAELRIY
AEBNRE  NEECVBREIED
B -

RKEREE

AEERBBMBEAERERZ2EREESH
B ([REEFTE]) - FERZEERZ
AEHTEBLRAEEMEEZESRA °
AEEIZTAEBNH BHUARS%IEH
F o BAERERR1500ET - AEER
B ER BT BEBA 2 ENBEKERRK
BRI EIZ XK E - NEBARF &K ARIE
B L AR FTBIE R AR
@A - REEBBRAENEBINE—SE
BIELIEEHRK -

RIB X FER A AR R X 51,486,00078 70 (2018
& ¢ 2,553,000 70) R R AE BIZZH 8138
BIFTR EREL RN Tz S et 2R -
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EXEH AR S

Material related party transactions identified during the year RERNZBTEERNEH ST RSB0

are summarised as follows:

(a) Related party transactions

Name of party
)yt

(a) BEBARS

Relationships

B%

Paul Tong & Associates Consulting
Engineers Limited (“Paul Tong")

EEBITIRERBRAR
(TEEBD

Wong & Cheng Consulting
Engineers Limited ("Wong &
Cheng”)

HEDEER TR AR A A
(T=®])

Guangzhou Yangcheng Pile Co.,
Ltd. ("Guangzhou Yangcheng”)

BMFRMEBERAA
(TEMF )

A private company controlled by a key management personnel

—RREZEREABEHBNMARF

A private company controlled by Mr. Kwong, a former executive director of
the Company
—EHBRARRRIATAITEER R EEHNLAR

A private company controlled by a key management personnel

—AHRETZEEABEHHMAR

2019 2018
2019 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consultancy fee paid to Paul Tong ME BN ERE 388 5,250
Consultancy fee paid to EE=S-E N
Wong & Cheng (note) AR & (M5E) N/A 1,352
Purchase of goods from Guangzhou  [AEMEMEE SR
Yangcheng 1,669 39,686
Note: Mr. Kwong resigned as executive director on 26 April FiaE : BB A 2019%F 4 A26 B BHE BEATT
2019 and therefore this entity is no longer regarded as FE - A EEN2019F12A31
a related party as at 31 December 2019. During the year BABRER—BHEMT - REZE
ended 31 December 2019 and prior to his resignation, 2019 12A31 B IEFE R 2B
no consultancy fee was paid to Wong & Cheng. ZA WERNESNERE -
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pvE e bR

ded 31 December 2019 # Z2019%F12A31HILEE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EXBEEES RS (&)

(conti

(b)

(c)

nued)
Balance with related parties (b) EEEEEES MR
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ExT FH&TT
Loans from directors REEZHNEN = 20,888
Amount due to immediate holding FERTEBEER A FKIE
company 17,847 -

The loans from directors, whom have all resigned during
the year, were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
after one year. The amounts were early repaid in full
during the year.

The amount due to immediate holding company is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms.

Key management personnel (c)
Remuneration of key management personnel, including

amounts paid to the executive directors as disclosed in
note 11 and senior management, is as follows:

REEF(ZFEZCRFRLESH
DNERREER 2EHER—F1&
BE - REFECRFRRAIEHE

ENERZERARRELSEER 2
SREREERY -

FTEEEAE
TEERABNE(RIEME 1R

BENATESNRERENERE
BRI

2019 2018

2019%F 2018%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Short-term employee benefits HHEERA 9,143 8,939
Post-employment benefits BERR 12 2 7 122 126
9,265 9,065

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” as set out
in note 9(a).

HINERE T AMaEoemEn (8T
DENI
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. Z/) Tl B #SHA S X I 6545

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
PEE FHET FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEULTE A 7] IE 63,457 -
Investments in subsidiaries RER TE']&, g 53,486 234
116,943 234
Current assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEURHTE A 7] IE 46,268 120,193
Other receivables A JE Wk 223 -
Cash and bank balances fﬁ(ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ% 3 50,649
46,494 170,842
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H At TR 2,679 3,789
Amount due to immediate &t B ”“
holding company B 1,100 -
Bank overdrafts RITIEX 240 -
Tax payable FERI AR 6 -
4,025 3,789
Net current assets MENEE A 42,469 167,053
Total assets less current liabilities  42& ER nE A& 159,412 167,287
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital B& R 26 6,120 6,120
Reserves [itic 153,292 161,167
159,412 167,287

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
13 July 2020 and is signed on its behalf by:

Ho Chun Kit Gregory

AR EARRKE BE B YR 2020F7 A
BEILERRETE AU TEEKESR

2

Guo Jianfeng

& 2Bl i
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019512A31 B IFEE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  33.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements in reserve of the Company:

ARATHBARR R R EE 2

LSRN

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

R RE RitEE st

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET FHET

Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 AW 85,939 (4,522) 81,417

Placing of new shares, BLEFAR G - MBRET

net of issuing expenses X 80,300 - 80,300
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREZEMY

expense for the year FkE] - (550) (550)
Balance at 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A31BE K&

1 January 2019 201941 A1 BRI A& 166,239 (5,072) 161,167
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEERZEMX

expense for the year k) - (7,875) (7,875)

Balance at 31 December 2019 2019512 A31 BB &R 166,239 (12,947) 153,292

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 34. TEHFRERS

During the year, the Group entered into new lease
agreements for the use of office premises and a motor vehicle
from 2 to 3 years. On the lease commencement, the Group
recognised HK$14,181,000 of right-of-use assets and the

related lease liabilities.

RER - AEBETLHEERHZAC BB A
EMERAE - BHR/2EF - REERK
- AR E R
MEBHERE

S FAHEE E 14,181,000/ 7T

o
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35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(i)

1 98 CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited 2 & 7= 15 (BB ) 2 iR A BR A 7)

On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into
a subscription and placing agreement with the
immediate holding company and a placing agent
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue and the immediate holding
company and the placing agent has conditionally
agreed to subscribe and place a maximum number of
77,000,000 and 73,000,000 new shares, respectively, at
the price of HK$0.80 per share. Details of the transaction
were disclosed in the Company’s announcements and
circular dated 22 January 2020 and 27 February 2020.
These transactions have not been completed at the
date of approval of these financial statements.

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
("COVID-19") in the PRC and the subsequent quarantine
measures imposed by the PRC government as well
as the travel restrictions imposed by other countries
in early 2020 have had a negative impact on the
operations and finance performance of the Group since
January 2020. The Group had to delay its construction
activities in the PRC after the Chinese New Year holiday.
Most of the Group's construction activities has resumed
since April 2020. In addition, in June 2020, the Group has
applied the Employment Support Scheme launched by
the Hong Kong SAR Government.

The directors of the Company will continue to pay close
attention and monitor the development of the outbreak
of COVID-19 and government support, and continue
to evaluate its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31HILEE

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 36. LLERE(F

For the consolidated statement of financial position as at FR2018F 12 AN HAGA T B REM

31 December 2018, below items have been reclassified or = U THEBEEEAEBBEBEEHSELE

presented as separate line item. 5l o

1. HK$50,005,000 pledged bank deposits is presented 1. 50,005,000/ L) B H IR IR 1T/ BUEEIR
separately from cash and bank balances. e RIBITHEBRDFRZY -

2. HKS$13,272,000 bank overdrafts is presented separately 2. 13,272,000 THIRITAE T HIRTTE R
from bank loans and overdrafts. REZHFEAZY -

3. HK$545,000 has been reclassified from trade and other 3. 5450008702 BB 5 K H M EWRFIE
receivables to non-current deposits. ENDBEIERBILES -

4. HK$19,831,000 has been reclassified from trade and 4. 19,831,000/ 7L HE 5 M EAth fE UK
other receivables to contract assets as the retention EENHBEENEE  RREAEW
receivables is still not yet unconditional. RATIRBEEN -

In addition, to conform with current year's presentation, AN - BREAFEMEINARN - RiRE1E

certain comparative figures for the line items on the mREMEEBERNIER 2E THREE

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BEFHE - MR REBRELAIEE, 5T

comprehensive income have been reclassified. No further EEEARE  WUWEZD)HE—FEFR o

information is presented as there is no significant impact to
the loss/profit before tax.
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Financial Summary

B 7548 &

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years are as follows.

AEEREREMBFEENEEREENBER

Z0F

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

RESULTS E 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

20194 20184F 20174 20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FHET FHET FHET FHET

Revenue Uz 246,880 610,761 821,907 715,107 628,732

(Loss) profit before tax BIAT(E1E)EH) (109,368) 21,869 31,206 55,287 67,442

Income tax credit (expense)  FT{SFi % (Fs) 1,230 (4,475) (8,319) (13,150) (13,115)

(Loss) profit for the year EE(EHRB)EF (108,138) 17,394 22,887 42,137 54,327

At 31 December
M12831H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

20194 2018%F 20174 2016%F 20154

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET FHETT FET

Total assets BESE 517,742 584,865 449,667 338,897 438,408

Total liabilities BEARE (283,513) (241,979) (210,092) (213,033) (211,273)

Net assets BESFE 234,229 342,886 239,575 125,864 227135
This annual report is published in both English and Chinese  ZR4F i LA 1 3 32 H| & o dh 3 AR AN 40 & F 4] &

languages. Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese £ » #E LA X i A 2%E o

and English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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